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Auditors' Report to the Directors 

We have audited the annexed statement of financial position of Industrial and Commercial 
Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches ("the branches") as at 31 December 2015 and the 
related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and 
statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof (here-in-after 
referred to as the 'financial statements') for the year then ended, and we state that we have 
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

It is the responsibility of the branches' management to establish and maintain a system of 
internal control, and prepare and present the financial statements in conformity with approved 
accounting standards and the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of 
1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984). Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing as 
applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of any material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing accounting policies and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and 
after due verification, which in the case of loans and advances covered more than sixty percent 
of the total loans and advances of the branches, we report that: 

a) in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the branches as required by the 
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984); 

b) in our opinion: 

i) the statement of financial position and profit and loss account together with the 
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies 
Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of 1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 
1984), and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance 
with accounting policies consistently applied; 

ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the branches 
business; and 

iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the 
year were in accordance with the objects of the branches and the transactions of the 
branches which have come to our notice have been within the powers of the 
branches; 
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c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us the statement of financial position, profit and loss account, statement of 
comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together 
with the notes forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required by the Banking Companies 
Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of 1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984), 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view of the state of the branches' affairs 
as at 31 December 2015 and its true balance of profit, its cash flows and changes in equity 
for the year then ended; and 

d) in our opinion, Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 
(XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the branches and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund 
established under section 7 of that Ordinance. 

Date: 	 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. 
25 MAR LU 	 Chartered Accountants 

Karachi 	 Amyn Malik 



Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches 
Statement of Financial Position 
As at December 31, 2015 

2015 	 2014 
Note 
	

(Rupees in '000) 
ASSETS 

Cash and balances with treasury banks 
Balances with other banks 
Lendings to financial institutions 
Investments 
Advances 
Operating fixed assets 
Deferred tax assets 
Other assets 

-6 
7 
8 
9 
10 
11 
16 
12 

5,413,124 
246,427 
669,547 

124,771,022 
6,999,406 

662,763 
41,078 

1 

4,329,697 
295,142 

1,129,730 
63,074,604 

6,087,050 
183,341 

850,823  

    

140,254,295 
	

75,950,387 

LIABILITIES 

Bills payable 
Borrowings 
Deposits and other accounts 
Sub-ordinated 
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Other liabilities 

13 
14 
15 

16 
17 

266,947 
100,081,926 
26,948,982 

4,667 
56,592,615 
9,500,726 

21,132 
5,323,681  

    

133,855,321 	71,442,821 

NET ASSETS 

REPRESENTED BY 

Head office capital account 
Unremitted profit 

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of investments - net of tax 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

6,398,974 	4,507,566  

18 3,780,941 3,627,239 
2,620,351 844,926 
6,401,292 4,472,165 

19 	(2,318) 	35,401  

	

6,398,974 	4,507,566  

20 

The annexed notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

4 -t 
Ye Ning  

Chief Executiv4 Officer 
	

Head of Finance 



21 
	

7,244,606 
	

4,607,826 
22 
	

(1,288,821) 
	

(1,078,251) 

	

5,955,785 
	

3,529,575 

	

5,955,785 
	

3,529,575 

	

518,557 
	

276,129 

23 	(2,229,627) 
	

(1,485,746) 

101 

	

(1,710,969) 	(1,209,327) 

	

4,244,816 	2,320,248 

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches 
Profit and Loss Account 
For the year ended December 31, 2015 

2015 	 2014 
Note 
	

(Rupees in 000) 

Mark-up / Return / Interest Earned 
Mark-up / Return / Interest Expensed 

Net mark-up / Interest Income 

Provision against non-performing loans and advances 
Provision for diminution in the value of investments 
Bad debts written off directly 

Net Mark-up I Interest Income after provisions 

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME 
Fee, commission and brokerage income 
Dividend income 
Loss from dealing in foreign currencies 
Gain / (Loss) on sale of securities 
Unrealized Gain / (Loss) on revaluation of investments 

classified as held for trading 
Other income 

Total non-mark-up / interest income 

NON MARK-UP I INTEREST EXPENSES 
Administrative expenses 
Other provisions / write-offs 
Other charges 

Total non-mark-up / interest expense 

Extra ordinary I unusual items 
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 

24 
	

(1,423,955) 
	

(915,410) 

	

(1,423,955) 
	

(915,410) 

	

2,820,861 
	

1,404,838 

	

2,820,861 
	

1,404,838 

Taxation - Current 
	

25 
	

1,029,256 
	

452,888 
- Prior year 
	

58,228 
- Deferred 
	

(41,952) 
	

36,784 

	

1,045,532 
	

489,672 
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 

	
1,775,329 
	

915,166 

The annexed notes I to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

4Slhu 	 Ye Nine 
Chief Execbtive  Officer 	 Head of Finance 



Chief Officer 

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended December 31, 2015 

Note 2015 2014 
(Rupees in !000) 

Profit after taxation for the year 1,775,329 915,166 

Other comprehensive income 

Items that will never be reclassified to profit and loss account 

Exchange adjustments on revaluation of capital 	 18 153,702 (174,768) 

Remeasurment of defined benefit plan - net of tax 	 29.1.4 96 - 

Comprehensive income - transferred to statement of changes in equity 1,929,127 740,398 

Components of comprehensive income not reflected 
in Head Office account 

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of available for sale 

securities - net of tax (37,719) 71,821 

Total comprehensive income 1,891,408 812,219 

The annexed notes I to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

ttbt 
Ye Ning 

Head of Finance 



Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches 
Statcmcnt of Changes in Equity 
For the Year ended December 31, 20/5 

Balance as at January 01, 2014 

Total comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2014 

Profit after taxation 

Other comprehensive income 

Exchange adjustments on revaluation of capita! 

Balance as at December 31, 2014 

Total comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2015 

Profit after taxation 

Other comprehensive income 

Exchange adjustments on revaluation of capita! 

Rcmeasurnlent of delined benefit plan - net of tax 

Balance as at December 31, 2015 

Head office 	Unremittecl 	Total 

capital account 	profit / 
Accumulated 

(losses) 
Note ----------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------- 

	

3,802,007 	(70,240) 	3,731,767 

	

915,166 	915,166 

/8 	(174,768) 	 - 	 (174,768) 

	

3,627,239 	844,926 	4,472,165 

- 	 1,775.329 	1.775,329 

/8 	153,702 	 - 	 153,702 

- 	 96 	 96 

	

153,702 	1,775,425 	1,929,127 

	

3,780,941 	2,620,351 	6,401,292 

The annexed notes I to 37 form all integral part of these financial statements. 

Jhf% 

Ye Ning 
Head of Finance 



Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches 
Cash Flow Statement 
For the year ended December 31, 2015 

2015 	 2014 
Note 
	

(Rupees in '000) 
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

11.2 
11.4 

11 

Profit before taxation 

Adjustments: 

Depreciation 
Amortisation 

(Increase) / Decrease in operating assets 
Lendings to financial institutions 
Advances 
Others assets 

Increase I (Decrease) in operating liabilities 
Bills payable 
Borrowings from financial institutions 
Deposits 
Other liabilities 

Income tax paid 
Net cash flow from operating activities 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Investments in operating fixed assets 
Net investments in available for sale securities 
Net cash flow from investing activities 

2,820,861 

165,947 
20 

2,986,828 

(912,356) 
(641,183) 

(1,553,539) 

262,280 
44,880,975 
17,448,256 
1,103,315 

63,694,826 
65,128,115 

(936,098) 
64,192,017 

(645,389) 
(61,734,137) 
(62,379,526) 

1,404,838 

79,822 

1,484,660 

1,232,653 
(2,192,637) 
1,393,007 

433,023 

(99,895) 
18,256,861 
(5,485,811) 
2,100,302 

14, 77 1,457 
16,689,140 

(475,000) 
16,214,140 

(19,870) 
(15,455,388) 
(15,475,258) 

Exchange adjustments on revaluation of capital 
	

18 
	

153,702 
	

(174,768) 
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 

	
1,966,193 
	

564,114 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 	 3,543,941 
	

2,979,827 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 	 26 

	
5,510,134 
	

3,543,941 

The annexed notes I to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Ye Ning 
Head of Finance 



Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited - Pakistan Branches 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the war ended December 31, 2015 

	

1. 	STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 

The Pakistan branches of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (''the Branches'') have 

commenced their operations in Pakistan with effect froni August 18, 2011. Industrial and Commercial 

Bank of China Limited is incorporated in the People's Republic of China. 

The Bank presently operate through three branches (December 3], 2014: three branches) in Pakistan 

and is engaged in banking activities permissible under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962. The 

registered office of the Branches is located at 16th Floor, Ocean Tower, Block 9, Clifton, Karachi 

previously located at Parsa Tower, PECI1S, Main Sharah-e-faisal, Karachi. The credit rating of the 

Bank is disclosed in note 27 to these financial statements. 

BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding the shifting of the banking 

system to Islamic modes, the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has issued various circulars from time 

to time. Permissible form of trade-related modes of financing includes purchase of goods by banks 

from their customers and immediate resale to them at appropriate mark-up on price on deferred 

payment basis. The purchases and sales arising under these arrangements are not reflected in these 

Financial statements as such, but are restricted to the amount of facility actually utilized and the 

appropriate portion of mark-up thereon. 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

	

3.1 	These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as are notified under 

the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of and directives issued under Companies Ordinance, 1984, 

the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and regulations/ directives issued by the Securities and 

Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and SBP. Wherever the requirements of Companies 

Ordinance, 1984, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or regulations / directives issued by the SECP 

and the SBP differ with the requirements of IFRS, the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 

1984, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or the requirements of the said regulations/ directives shall 

prevail. 

	

3.2 	The State Bank of Pakistan has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standard (LAS) 

39, 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' and International Accounting Standard (LAS) 

40, 'Investment Property' for banking companies through BSD Circular Letter No. 10 dated August 26, 

2002 till further instructions. Further, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan has deferred 

the applicability of International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 7, 'Financial Instruments: 

Disclosures' on banks through its notification S.R.O 411(1)/2008 dated April 28, 2008. Accordingly, the 

requirements of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of these financial 

statements. However, investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the 

requirements prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan through various circulars. 



3.3 	Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting 
standards that are not yet effective: 

The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be 
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after January 01, 2016: 

Amendments to LAS 38 Intangible Assets and lAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016) introduce severe restrictions on the use of 
revenue-based amortization for intangible assets and explicitly state that revenue-based methods of 
depreciation cannot be used for property, plant and equipment. The rebuttable presumption that the 
use of revenue-based amortization methods for intangible assets is inappropriate can be overcome 
only when revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are 'highly 
correlated', or when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue, The amendments are 
not likely to have an impact on Branches financial statements. 

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendments to MRS 10—Consolidated 
Financial Statements and lAS 28— Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures) (effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016) clarifies (a) which subsidiaries of an investment 
entity are consolidated; (b) exemption to present consolidated financial statements is available to a 
parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity; and (c) how an entity that is not an 
investment entity should apply the equity method of accounting for its investment in an associate or 
joint venture that is an investment entity. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Branches' 
financial statements. 

Amendments to IFRS II 'Joint Arrangements' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2016) clarify the accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation where 
the activities of the operation constitute a business. The amendments are not likely to have an 
impact on Branches' financial statements. 

Amendment to lAS 27 'Separate Financial Statements' (effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2016) allows entities to use the equity method to account for investments in 
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. The amendment is 
not likely to have an impact on Branches' financial statements. 

Agriculture: Bearer Plants [Amendment to LAS 16 and lAS 411 (effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after January I, 2016). Bearer plants are now in the scope of lAS 16 Property, Plant and 
Equipment for measurement and disclosure purposes. Therefore, a company can elect to measure 
bearer plants at cost. However, the produce growing on bearer plants will continue to be measured at 
fair value less costs to sell under lAS 41 Agriculture. A bearer plant is a plant that is used in the supply 
of agricultural produce; is expected to bear produce for more than one period; and has a remote 
likelihood of being sold as agricultural produce; is expected to bear produce for more than one period; 
and has a remote likelihood of being sold as agricultural produce. Before maturity, bearer plants are 
accounted for in the same way as self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment during 
construction. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Branches' financial statements. 

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 cycle (amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2016). The new cycle of improvements contain amendments to the following standards: 

WXAA 



IFRS S Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. MRS 5 is amended to 
clarify that if an entity changes the method of disposal of an asset (or disposal group) i.e. 
reclassifies an asset from held for distribution to owners to held for sale or vice versa without any 
time lag, then such change in classification is considered as continuation of the original plan of 
disposal and if an entity determines that an asset (or disposal group) no longer meets the criteria to 
be classified as held for distribution, then it ceases held for distribution accounting in the same way 
as it would cease held for sale accounting. 

lAS 19 'Employee Benefits'. lAS 19 is amended to clarify that high quality corporate bonds or 
government bonds used in determining the discount rate should be issued in the same currency in 

which the benefits are to be paid. 

- lAS 34 'Interim Financial Reporting'. lAS 34 is amended to clarify that certain disclosures, if they 
are not included in the notes to interim financial statements and disclosed elsewhere should be 

cross referred. 

- lAS 24 'Related Party Disclosures'. The definition of related party is extended to include a 
management entity that provides key management personnel services to the reporting entity, either 

directly or through a group entity. 

The above amendments are not likely to have an impact on Branches' financial statements. 

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT 

	

4.1 	Accounting convention 

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that 
available for sale investments, derivative financial instruments and forward foreign exchange contracts 
are measured at fair value and defined benefit obligation carried at at present value. 

	

4.2 	Functional and Presentation Currency 

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the branches functional and 
presentation currency. The amounts are rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees except as stated 

otherwise. 

	

4.3 	Critical accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires 
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies 

and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be 

reasonable under the circumstances, the results olwhich form the basis of making thejudgements 

about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 

Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in 
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision 

and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 



Significant accounting estimates and areas where judgements were made by the management in the 

application of accounting policies are as follows: 

- 	classification of investments (note 5.4. 1) 
- 	income taxes (note 5.8 and 25) 
- 	depreciation of operating fixed assets (note 5.6) 

- 	fair value of derivatives (note 5.15) 

- 	defined benefit plan (note 5.9) 
- 	impairment of assets (note 5.4.5, 5.6 and 11) 
- 	contingencies (note 20) 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies and the methods of computation adopted in the preparation of these 

financial statements are the same as those applied in the preparation of the financial statements as 

at and for the year ended 31 December 2014, except for the change in note 5.1. Moreover, during 
the current period IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements", IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangements', 
IFRS 12 'Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities" and IFRS 13 "Fair Value Measurement" became 
effective for financial periods beginning on or after I January 2015. IFRS 10, IFRS II and IFRS 12 
did not have any impact on the Branches' financial statements. The effect of IFRS 13 "Fair Value 

Measurement" are disclosed in notes 5.1 and 31 to these financial statements. 

	

5.1 	Change in accounting policy - fair value measurement 

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement establishes a single framework for measuring fair value and making 
disclosures about fair value measurements when such measurements are required or permitted by other 

IFRSs. It unifies the definition of fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It 

replaces and expands the disclosure requirements about fair value measurements in other IFRSs, 
including IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. As a result, the Branches have included additional 
disclosures in this regard in note 31 to these financial statements. In accordance with the transitional 
provisions of IFRS 13, the Branches have applied the new fair value measurement guidance 
prospectively and has not provided any comparative information for new disclosures. Notwithstanding 
the above, the change had no significant impacts on the measurements of the Branches' assets and 

liabilities. 

	

5.2 	Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, balances with treasury banks, balances with other 

banks in current and deposit accounts and lcndings and borrowings having original maturity of three 

months or less. 

	

5.3 	Lendings to! borrowings from financial institutions 

The Branches enter into transactions of repos and reverse repos at contracted rates for a specified 

period of time. These are recorded as under: 

Sale of securities under repurchase agreements 

Securities sold subject to a repurchase agreement (repo) are retained in the financial statements as 
investments and the counter party liability is included in borrowings. The difference between the sale 
and contracted repurchase price is accrued on a time proportion basis over the period of the contract 
and recorded as an expense. 



Purchase of securities under resale agreements 

Securities purchased under agreement to resell (reverse repo) are not recognized in the financial 

statements as investments and the amount extended to the counter party is included in lendings. The 

difference between the purchase and contracted resale price is accrued on a time proportion basis over 
the period of the contract and recorded as income. 

5.4 	Investments 

5.4.1 Classification 

The Branches classifies its investments as follows: 

Held for trading 

These are investments, which are either acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in 

market prices, interest rate movements, dealers margin or are securities included in a portfolio in which 
a pattern of short-term profit taking exists. 

Available for sale 

These are investments which do not fall under the 'held for trading' and 'held to maturity' categories. 

Held to maturity 

These are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities and the Branches 
has the positive intent and ability to hold them till maturity. 

Loans and receivables 

These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. 
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method. 

5.4.2 	Regular way contracts 

All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time flame established by 
regulation or market convention are recognized at settlement date, which is the date at which the 
Branches agrees to settle the purchase or sale of investments. 

5.4.3 	Initial recognition and measurement 

Investments other than those categorized as 'held for trading' are initially recognized at fair value. 
Transaction costs associated with the investment are included in cost of investments. Investments 
classified as 'held for trading' are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in 
the profit and loss account. 



5.4.4 	Subsequent measurement 

In accordance with the requirements of State Bank of Pakistan, quoted securities other than those 
classified as 'held to maturity' are subsequently remeasured to market value. Surplus / (deficit) 

arising on revaluation of securities classified as 'held for trading' is taken to profit and loss account 
and for securities classified as 'Available for sale' is taken to a separate account shown in the 

statement of financial position below equity. Investments classified as 'Held to maturity' are carried 
at amortized cost. 

5.4.5 Impairment 

Provision for diminution in the values of securities is made after considering impairment, if any, in 
the value. Provision for impairment against debt securities is made as per the aging criteria 
prescribed by the Prudential Regulations of SBP. 

5.5 	Loans and advances 

Loans and advances are stated net off provisions against non-performing advances. Specific and 

general provisions are made in accordance with the requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued 

by the State Bank of Pakistan from time to time. The net provision made / reversed during the year is 
charged to profit and loss account and accumulated provision is adjusted against advances. Advances 
are written off when there are no realistic prospects of recovery. 

5.6 	Operating fixed assets 

Tangible assets 

Operating fixed assets except capital work-in-progress are stated at historical cost less accumulated 

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditures that are 

directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Depreciation is charged to income by applying the straight-line method using the rates specified in note 
11.1 to these financial statements. The depreciation charge for the year is calculated after taking into 

account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed 

and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. Depreciation on additions is charged from the date 

on which the assets are available for use and ceases on the date on which they are disposed off. 

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Subsequent costs are 

included in the assets' carrying amount or are recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Branches and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets 

Intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line 
method over their estimated useful lives. The useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed and 
adjusted, if appropriate at each reporting date. Intangible assets having an indefinite useful life are 
stated at acquisition cost, less impairment loss, if any. 



Impairment 

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 

indication of impairment of any asset or group of assets. If any such indication exists, the recoverable 

amount of such assets is estimated and impairment losses are recognised immediately in the financial 

statements. The resulting impairment loss is taken to the profit and loss account except for impairment 

loss on revalued assets, which is adjusted against related revaluation surplus to the extent that the 

impairment loss does not exceed the surplus on revaluation of that asset. 

	

5.7 	Capital work-in-progress 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditure 

connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under this 

head. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets become available for use. 

	

5.8 	Taxation 

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. income tax expense is recognized in the 

profit and loss account except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other 

comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. 

Current 

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking 

into consideration available tax credit and rebates, if any. The charge for current tax also includes 

adjustments, where considered necessary relating to prior years, which arise from assessments I 

developments made during the year. 

Deferred 

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences arising 

between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used 

for the taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of 

realization or settlement of the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities using the tax rates enacted or 

substantially enacted at the reporting date. A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it 

is probable that future taxable profits will be available and the credits can be utilized. Deferred tax 

asset is reduced to the extent that it IS no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be realized. 

	

5.9 	Employee benelits 

a) Defined benefit plan 

The Branches operate an approved funded gratuity scheme covering eligible employees whose 

period of employment with the Branches is five years or more. Contributions to the fund are made 

on the basis of actuarial recommendations. Projected Unit Credit Method is used for the actuarial 

valuation. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. 

Gratuity is payable to staff on completion of the prescribed qualifying period of service tinder the 

scheme. 



b) Defined contribution plan 

The branches operate an approved provident fund for all of its local permanent employees in 
respect of which contributions are made to discharge liability under the respective rules of the 
schemes. Equal monthly contributions are made both by the Bank and its employees to the fund 

at the rate of 10% of the basic salary in accordance with the terms of the scheme. 

	

5.10 	Borrowings! deposits and their cost 

a) Borrowings / deposits are recorded at the proceeds received. 

b) Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred using 

effective mark-up / interest rate method to the extent that they are not directly attributable to the 
acquisition of or construction of qualifying assets. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to 

the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (one that takes a substantial period 

of time to get ready for use or sale) are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. 

	

5.11 	Provisions 

Provisions are recognized when the branches have a present, legal or constructive, obligation as a result 

of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will he required to settle the obligation and a 

reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

5.12 Acceptances 

Acceptances comprise undertakings by the branches to pay bills of exchange drawn on customers. The 
branches expect most acceptances to be simultaneously settled with the reimbursement from the 
customers. Acceptances are accounted for as off balance sheet transactions and are disclosed as 
contingent liabilities and commitments. 

	

5.13 	Revenue recognition 

Advances and investments 

Mark-up income on loans and advances and debt securities is recognized on a time proportion basis. 
Where debt securities are purchased at a premium or discount, those premiums / discounts are 

amortized through the profit and loss account over the remaining maturity, using the effective yield 
method. 

Fee, commission and brokerage 

Fee, commission and brokerage income except income from guarantees are accounted for Ofl 

receipt basis. Commission on guarantees is recognized on time proportion basis. 

Other income is recognized on accrual basis. 



	

5.14 	Foreign currency translation 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani rupees at the exchange rates prevailing 

on the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated 

into Pakistan Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and 

losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange 

rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the profit 

and loss account. 

Forward contracts are valued at forward rates applicable to the respective maturities of the relevant 

foreign exchange contract. 

Exchange gains and losses are included in income. 

Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are disclosed at contracted rates. 

Contingent liabilities / commitments for letters of credit and letters of guarantee denominated in foreign 

currencies are expressed in rupee terms at the exchange rates ruling on the reporting date. 

	

5.15 	Derivative financial instruments 

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date at which the derivative 

contract is entered into and subsequently remeasured at fair value using appropriate valuation 

techniques. All derivative instruments are carried as assets where fair value is positive and as liabilities 

where fair value is negative. Any changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are taken 

to the profit and loss account. 

	

5.16 	Off-setting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are off-set and the net amount is reported in the financial 

statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amount and the 

branches intend either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities 

simultaneously. Income and expense items of such assets and liabilities are also off-set and the net 

amount is reported in the financial statements. 

	

5.17 	Segment reporting 

A segment is a distinguishable component of the branches that is engaged either in providing product or 

services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic 

environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those 

of other segments. The branches primary format of reporting is based on business segments. 

Business segments 

Trading and sales 

It includes fixed income, equity, foreign exchanges, commodities, credit, funding, own position 

securities, lending and repos, brokerage debt and prime brokerage. 

y.qrf3)Yt 



Corporate finance 

This represents the provision of banking services including treasury and international trade activities 
to large corporate customers, multinational companies, government and semi government 
departments and institutions and SMEs treated as corporate under Prudential Regulations. 

CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS 
2015 	2014 

Note 	(Rupees in 000) 
In hand 

Local currency 	 16,331 	4,871 
Foreign currencies 
	

88,668 	40,250 

	

104,999 	45,121 

With State Bank of Pakistan in: 
Local currency current accounts 6.1 	1,111,524 420,939 
Foreign currency current accounts 6.2 	94,267 70,602 
Foreign currency deposit accounts 6.3 	4,102,334 3,793,035 

5,413,124 4,329,697 

6.1 	This includes statutory liquidity reserve maintained with the SBP under Section 22 of the Banking 
Companies Ordinance, 1962. 

	

6.2 	As per BSD Circular No. 9 dated December 3, 2007, cash reserve of 5% is required to be 
maintained with the State Bank of Pakistan on deposits held under the New Foreign Currency 
Accounts Scheme (FE-25 deposits). 

	

6.3 	This includes special cash reserve of 15% required to be maintained with the State Bank of Pakistan 
on FE-25 deposits as specified in BSD Circular No. 14 dated June 21, 2008. Profit rates on these 
deposits are fixed by SBP on a monthly basis. The State Bank of Pakistan has not remunerated 
these deposit accounts during the year. It also includes capital maintained with SBP in accordance 
with the requirements of Section 13  of Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 amounting to USD 
36.098 million (December 31, 2014: USD 36.098 million). 

BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS 	 2015 	2014 
Note 	(Rupees in '000) 

In Pakistan 
On current accounts 	 381 	 379 

Outside Pakistan 
On deposit accounts 	 7.1 	246,046 	294,763 

	

246,427 	295,142 

	

7.1 	This includes placement of foreign currency funds with other ICBC branches, at interest rates ranging 
from 0% to 1.4% per annum (2014: 0% to 1.3% per annum). 

VfWANk 



8 LENDIINCS '10 FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 2015 2014 
Note (Rupees in '000) 

Call money lendings 8,1 669,547 1,129,730 
Repurchase agreement lendings (Reverse repo) - - 

669,547 1,129330 

8.1 These represent call lendings to other branch of ICBC at a mark-tip rate of' 1.3% per annum (December 31, 2014: ranging from 4.0% to 
4.1% per annum) with maturity in January 2016 (December 31, 2014: upto March 2015). 

— 	8.2 Particulars of lending 2015 2014 
Note (Rupees in '000) 

In local ctirrency - - 
In foreign cun'eueies 669.547 1,129,730 

669,547 1,129.730 

9 INVESTMENTS 	 2015 2014 
held by 
	Given as Field by Given as 

9.1 Investments by type 	 Rank 	Collateral 	Total Bank Collateral Total 
Note ----------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------- - 

Available-for-sale securities 
Market Treasury Bills 	 9.1,1 	124,774,588 	 124,774,588 61,908,464 1.111,677 63,020,141 
Investments at cost 	 124,774,588 	- 	124,774,588 61,908,464 1,111,677 63,020,141 

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of 
available Jbr sale securities 	 /9 	(3,566) 	- 	(3,566) 53,463 1,000 54,463 

Total investments at market value 	 124,771,022 	- 	124.771,022 61,961,927 1.112.677 63,074,604 

9.1.1 These Market Treasury Bills will mature upto Ati3ust 2016 (December 31,2014: upto May 2015) and carry interest rates ranging from 6.29% 
to 6.94% (December 31,2014: from 9.39% to 10.02%) per annum. 

9.2 Investments by segments: 2015 2014 
Note (Rupees in '000) 

Federal Goverutnent Securities 

Market treasury hills 124,774,588 63,020,141 

Total investments at cost 124,774,588 63,020.141 

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of available for sale securities /9 (3,566) 54,463 

Total i'ivestments at market value 124.771,022 63.074.604 

9.3 Quality of Available for Sale Securities 	 Market value 	 Cost 
2015 	2014 	2015 2014 

---------------- - 	(Rupees in 	000) -------------------------- 

-- Market Treasury Bills(imrated) 	 124.771,022 	63,074.604 	124,774,588 63,020,141 

ID ADVANCES 2015 2014 
-- (Rupees in '000) 

Loans, cash credits, running finances. etc. 
In Pakistan 4,448,341 3,948,633 

— Bills discounted and purchased (excluding treasury hills) 
Payable in Pakistan 2,551,065 2,138,417 

6.999,406 0,087 050 

10.1 Particulars of advances 

10.1.1 In local currency 6.908,341 5,747,633 
In foreign currencies 91,065 339,417 

6.999,406 6,087.050 

10.1.2 Short-tena (for tipto one year) 	 . 6,717,666 5,888,427 
Long-term (for over one year) 281,740 198,623 

-. 
6,999,406 6,087,050 

10.2 No advances,  have been placed under non-perlbruing status (December 31. 2014: Nil). 



II OPERATING FIXED ASSETS Note 2015 2014 

(Rupees in '000) 

Capital work-in-progress 11.1 542,330 

Property and equipment 11.2 120,310 183,341 

Intangible assets 11.4 123 - 
- 662,763 183,341 

11.1 Capital Work-in-progress 

- Building 447,950 

Civil work's 94,380 - 
542,331) 

This represent cost oitwo floors of the new head office building located at Ocean Tower Karachi. Al 31 December 2015, the floors were 

1101 available Jul-  use, i.e. these were not in the condition of' being used in the manner intended by the management. 

11.2 Property and equipment 
- 2015 

Cost Depreciation Book value 

As at Additions As at As at As at As at 

January 01, December January 	Charge for December December 31, Rate of 

2015 31,2015 01, 2015 	file year 31, 2015 2015 Depreciation 

-------------------- --------------------------------- (Rupeesin'OOO) ----------------------------------------------------- 

Leaseltold improvements 	282,190 50,370 332,560 125,408 	149,867 275.275 57,285 20% to 33% 

Furniture and fixtures 	21,933 25,161 47,094 10,283 	7,158 17,441 29,653 20% 

-- Vehicles 	 51005 16,149 21,154 783 	1 5750 2,533 18,621 16.7% 

Electrical, office and 
computerequiptnenls 	81,535 11,236 92,771 70,848 	7,172 78,020 14,751 33% 

390,663 102,916 493,579 207,322 	165,947 373,269 120,310 

2014 

- Cost Depreciation Book value 

As at Additions As at As at As at As at 

January 01, December January 	Charge Icr the December December 31, Rare of 

2014 31,2014 01,2014 	year 31, 2014 2014 Depreciation 

- (Rupees in'OOO) ----------------------------------------------------- 

Leasehold improvements 	282,190 - 282,190 67,161 	58,247 125,408 156,782 20% 

Furniture and fixtures 	16,380 5,553 21.933 6,975 	3,308 10,283 11,650 20% 

Vehicles 	 - 5,005 5,005 - 	783 783 4,222 16.7% 

Electrical, office and 

computer equipments 	72,223 9,312 81,535 53,364 	17,484 70.848 10,687 33% 

- 370,793 19,870 390.663 127.500 	79.822 207,322 183,341 

11.3 This includes  additintial depreciation charge on account of' improvement  of previous head office building, as the Bank shined its Karachi 

office from Parsa lowers, p,E.C,tLS, Main Shahra-e -Faisal to 15th and 16th floor, Ocean 'rower, Block 9, Clifion oil I January 2016. 

11.4 	Intangible assets Cost Amortization Book value 

As at 	Atlditiuits As at As at 	Charge for As at As at 
January Dl, December January 	the year Dccc ni her Decent her 31, 

- 2015 31, 2015 01, 2015 31, 2015 2015 
Rate of' 

Amortization 
(Rupees it] 'OOO) --- ------- - 

Computer sofiware - 	143 143 - 	20 20 123 50% 



12 OTHER ASSETS 	 Note 	 2015 	 2014 
(Rupees in '000) 

Income / Mark-up accrued in local currency 
Income I Mark-up accrued in foreign currencies 
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 
Unrealized gain on forward foreign exchange contracts 
Receivable from employee benefit plan 	 29.1.3 
Local clearing account 
Others 

13 BILLS PAYABLE 

- 	 In Pakistan 

- 14 BORROWINGS 

In Pakistan 
Outside Pakistan 

- 	14.1 Particulars of borrowings with respect to currencies 
In local currency 
In foreign currencies 

14.2 Details of borrowings Secured / Unsecured 

Secured 
Repurchase agreement borrowings (Repo) 

30,022 57,559 
540 2,323 

228,851 489,385 
1,118,034 299,487 

1,482 262 
71,931 1,807 

68 - 
1,450,928 850,823 

	

266,947 	4,667 

	

400,000 	1,111,677 

	

99,681,926 	55,480,938 

	

100,081,926 	56,592,615 

	

400,000 	1,111,677 

	

99,681,926 	55,480,938 

	

100,081,926 	56,592,615 

- 	1,111,677 

Unsecured 

Call borrowings 
	

14.3 
	

100,081,926 	55,480,938 

	

100,081,926 	56,592,615 

14.3 This represents borrowings from financial institutions and other ICBC branches at mark-up rates ranging 
from 0.25% to 6.5% per annum (2014: 0.08% to 1.9%) maturing byjune 2016 (2014: May 2015). 

2015 	 2014 

(Rupees in '000) 

4,136,999 3,873,418 
12,448,182 3,196,248 

f 	10,343,373 2,374,083 
26,928,554 9,443,749 

- 	 36,000 

	

20,428 	20,977 

	

26,948,982 	9,500,726 

15 DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS 

Customers 
Fixed deposits 
Savings deposits 
Current accounts - Non-remunerative 

Financial Institutions 
Remunerative deposits 
Non-remunerative deposits 



15.1 Particulars of rleposils 2015 2014 

(Rupees in '000) 

In local currency 16,415,524 5,814,084 

In foreign currencies 10,533,458 3.686,642 

26,948,982 9,500,726 

16 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS! (LIABILITIES) - NET 

Deferred debits arising in respect of 

- Investments - available for sale 1,248 (19,062) 

- Accelerated tax depreciation 39,882 (2,070) 

41,130 (21,132) 

Deferred credits arising due to 

- Remeasuremeni of defined benefit liability 52 - 
(21,132) 

16.1 Movement in deferred tax balances 
As at Recognized Recognized As at 

January 01, in profit in other December 
2015 or loss comprehensive 31, 2015 

income 
-------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------------------------------- 

- Accelerated tax depreciation 	 (2,070) 41,952 - 39,882 
Investments - available Fr sale 	 (19,062) - 20,310 1,243 
Renieasurcnsenl oFdelincd benclit liability 	 - - (52) (52) 

(21,132) 41,952 20,258  41,078 

As at Recognized Recognized As at 
January 0!, in profit in revaluation December 

2014 or loss surplus 31.2014 
-------------------------------------- (Rupees in000) -------------------------------------- 

Accelerated lax depreciation 	 (23.026) 20,956 - (2,070) 
- Investments - available fix sale 	 19,611 - (38,673) (19,062) 

Unabsorbed tax losses 	 57,740 (57.740) -- - 
54.325 36,7S41 8,673) 

17 OTHER LIABILITIES 2015 2014 

Note (Rupees in '000) 

-- Mark-up! Return / Interest payable in local currency 187,486 126,856 
Mark-up! Return / Interest payable in foreign currencies 181,909 162,472 
Staff salaries and performance bonus payable 17.1 681,458 285,662 

-- Payable to head office 17.2 1,456,109 1,396,916 
Unrealized loss on forward foreign exchange contracts 3,463,136 2,530,292 
Commission received in advance against unfunded 

exposure 327,132 338,733 
Workers' Wcllhrc Fund 58,816 5,675 
Advance received from customers in respect of 

- forward contracts - 329,834 
Income (ax payable 128,169 - 
Withholding tax payable 35,029 21,876 
ATM and other settlements 31,467 124,450 
Others 6,755 9 I 5 

6,557,466 5,323,681 

- 	17.1 This includes staff performance bonus amounting to Rs. 565.25 million and Rs. 111.12 million for the 
financial years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, respectively. 

- 



17.2 This represents interest lice advance o US!) 13.9 million (December 31.201 4: US I) 13.9 million) 

provided by the head o [flee Jer the purpose of initial set up ol branches operations! The terms of  

repayment have not yet been agreed. 

18 HEAD OFFICE CAPITAL ACCOUNT 	 Note 	 2015 	 2014 

(Rupees in '000) 

Capital lie/cl as mtere.cIfiee c/cpus/I iii a/)pioVL'd 

/oren4i/ exclicine 

US 1)36.098 million (201d: USI) 36.098 million) 

- 	Balance  at the begi in a g  of the year 

- 	Revaluation surplus / (deficit) allowed by the 

State Bank o [Pa Ic i stan during the year 

19 	(DEFICIT) / SIJIZI'JAJS ON REVALUATION OF 

INVESTMENTS - AVAILABLE FOR SALE 

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of Government securities 

Related deferred tax asset! (liability) 	 16.1 

20 CONT1NCENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

20.1 Transaction-related Contingent Liabilities 

Government 

Others 

20.2 Trade-related Contingent Liabilities  

Letters nleredit 

Acceptances 

20.3 Commitments in respect (ii forward exchange contracts 

Purchase 

Sale 

20.4 Commitments in respect of repo transactions 

Rep ii id ase 

Resale 

20.5 Commitments to extend credit - syndicated loan 

21 MARK-UP/ RETURN/ INTEREST EARNED 

On loans mid advances to customers 

On investments in available for sale see tirities 

On deposits with financial institutions 

On securities purchased under resale agreements 

On call money lendings 

	

3,627,239 	3.802,007 

	

153,702 	(174.76$) 

	

3,780,941 	3.627.239 

	

(3,566) 	54.463 

	

1,248 	(19.062) 

	

(2,318) 	35.401 
I,  

	

44,650,292 	22,622,127 

	

61,481,863 	39.552.156 

106,132,15562,174,283 

	

793,946 	315,081 

	

3,264,603 	2,275,517 

	

217,070,802 	150.138.785 

	

220,615,085 	153.051,919 

- 	 1.111.677 

236,111 	319,444 

472,716 422,113 

6,623,914 4.057.222 

36,017 55.353 

5,027 17.389 

106,932 55,749 

7,244,606 4.607,826 



22 MARK-UP! RETURN! INTEREST EXPENSED 	 2015 	 2014 
Note 	 (Rupees in '000) 

Deposits 
Securities sold under repurchase agreements 
Other short term borrowings 

23 LOSS FROM DEALING IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES 

Revaluation loss on forwards ! swaps deals 
Exchange (loss) / gain on forwards! swaps deals 
Exchange gain on foreign exchange spot deals 
Others 

24 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

	

531,386 	526,912 

	

76,608 	 - 

	

680,827 	551,339 

	

1,288,821 	1,078,251 

(114,297) (3,322,643) 
(3,264,773) 1,598,000 
1,183,588 199,348 

(34,145) 39,549 
(2,229,627) (1,485,746) 

Salaries and allowances 
Charge for defined benefit plan 
Contribution to defined contribution plan and EOBI 
Charge for Workers' Welfare Fund 
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity, etc. 
Legal and professional charges 
Communications 
Stationery and printing 
Advertisement and publicity 
Donations 
Depreciation and amortization 
Travelling and entertainment 
Auditors' remuneration 
Others 

24.1 Donations 

894,169 611,333 
726 486 

2,047 1,435 
58,816 28,670 

162,884 105,423 
12,900 6,127 
23,074 19,294 
15,858 3,935 
12,520 3,517 

50 200 
165,967 79,822 
32,132 26,845 

2,312 2,359 
40,500 25,964 

1,423,955 915,410 

29.1.4 

24.1 
11.2 & 11.4 

24.2 

Chief minister fund for flood relief 
	

50 	 - 
Dar-ul-Sukun 	 - 	 100 
Army Public School 	 - 	 100 

	

50 	 200 

24.2 Auditors' remuneration 

Audit fee 
	

920 	 650 
Provident and Gratuity Fund Audit 

	
79 	 - 

Half yearly review 	 217 	 217 
Special certifications and sundry advisory services 	 1,096 	1,492 

	

2,312 	 2,359 



25 TAXATION 

For the year 
Current 
Deferred 
Prior 

25.1 Relationship bet wee ii tax expense and 
accounting probt 

Pro lit before taxation  

Tax at the applicable rate of 35% (2014: 350/,,) 

Effect of: 
- Prior year charge 
- Others 
Tax expense for the year  

2015 	 2014 
Note 	 (Rupees in '000) 

	

1,029,256 	452,888 
/6.1 	 (41,952) 	36,784 
25.2 	 58,228 	 - 

	

1,045,532 	489,672 

	

2,820,861 	1,404,838 

	

987,301 	491,693 

25.2 	 58,228 
3 	(2,02!) 

	

1,045,532 	489,672 

25.2 The Finance Act, 2015 has introduced certain amendments relating to taxation of banking companies. 
As per these amendments, one-time super tax at the rate of 4 percent of the taxable income has also 
been levied. These amendments apply retrospectively for the tax year 2015, (i.e. year ended December 
31, 2014). The effects of above amendments have been incorporated as a prior year tax charge in these 
financial statements. 

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and balances with treasury banks 
Balance with other banks 
Short term lending 
Short term borrowings 

27 CREDIT RATING 

6 	5,413,124 4,329,697 
7 	 246,427 295,142 

669,547 1,129,730 
(818,964) (2,210,628) 

5,510,134 3,543,941 

Moody's Investor Services Inc. has assigned a long term credit rating of Al and a short term credit 
rating of P-Ito the head office of the Bank as at 02 March 2016 (2014: Al for long term and P-I for 
short term). 

28 STAFF STRENGTH 
	

2015 	 2014 
(Number of employees) 

Permanent 
	

77 	 72 
Temporary / on contractual basis 

	
IL 	6 

Bank's own staff strength at the end of the year 
	

83 	 78 

Outsourced 
	

8 	 4 
Total Staff Strength 
	

91 	 82 

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Defined Contribution Plan 

The Bank contributed an amount of Rs. 1,889,818(2014: Its. 1,435,117) against a recognized Provident 
Fund during the year. 



29.1 	Defined benefit plan 

The branches operate an approved gratuity fund registered in October 2013 w.e.f July 2013 For all its local 

peimanent employees who have completed the qualifying period as defined in the scheme. In the current 

Year, the branches have carried out an actuarial valuation on 31 December 2015 using Projected Unit Credit 

Method and recorded the obligation accordingly. 

29.1.1 Principal actuarial assumptions 

The projected unit credit method, as required by the International Accounting Standard 19 - Employee 

Benefits', was used for actuarial valuation based on the following significant assumptions: 

2015 	 2014 

Discount rate 
	 9.000/1, 	 10.50% 

Salary increase 
	

8.50% 	 10.00% 

The disclosures made in notes 29.1 to 29.1.12 are based on the information included in the actuarial 

valuation report of the Bank as of December 31,2015. 

29.1.2 Reconciliation of (receivable) from I payable to 	 Note 	 2015 	 2014 

defined benefit plan 	 (Rupees in '000) 

Present value of defined benefit obligations 

Fair value of plan assets 

29.1.6 	 2,161 1,419 

29.1.7 	 (3,643) (1,681) 

(1,482) (262) 

29.1.3 Movement in (receivable) from / payable to defined benefit plan 

(262) 450 

29.1.4 	 578 486 

(1,798) (1,198) 

12 	 (1,482) (262) 

848 547 

(122) (61) 

726 486 

107 

(255) 

- 
- 

(148) - 
578 486 

271 	 135 

1,419 907 

848 771 

- (223) 

149 73 

(255) (109) 

2,161 1,419 

Opening balance 

Charge for the year - in profit and loss account 

Bank's contribution to fund made during the year 

Closing balance 

29.1.4 Charge for defined benefit plan 

Recognized in profit and loss account 

Current service cost 

Net interest 

Recognized in other comprehensive income * 

Return on plan assets exculd ing interest income 

AeldaPia I gain on obligations 

Total 

* net of tax is Its. 96 thousand. 

29.1.5 Actual return on plan assets 

29.1.6 Reconciliation of present value of obligation 

Present value of obligation as at January 1, 2015 

Current service cost 

Past service cost 

Int4rest cost 

Remèasurement loss due to experience adjustment 

Present value of obligation as at December 31,2015 



29.1.7 	Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: 

Opening fair value of plan assets 
Interest income 
Contributions by the Bank 
Benefits paid 
Return on plan assets exculding interest income 
Fair value at end of the year  

2015 	2014 

(Rupees in '000) 

1,681 456 
271 135 

1,798 1,198 

(107) (108) 
3,643 1,681 

29.1.8 	Plan assets consist of bank deposits.The gratuity fund was invested within the limits specified by 
regulations governing investment of approved gratuity funds in Pakistan. There is no investment in the 
shares or securities of the Bank. 

29.1.9 Expected gratuity expense for the next year 

Expected gratuity expense for the year ending December 31, 2016, works out to Rs. 1,039,662. 

29.1.10 Sensitivity Analysis 

Impact on obligation of change in assumptions is as follows: 

Particulars 1% increase 
(Rs. in 000') 

1% decrease 
(Rs. in 000') 

Discount rate (113) 124 

Salary increases 123 (114) 

29.1.11 Maturity Profile 

Particulars Undiscounted 
Payments 

(Rs. in 000) 
Year 1 150 

Year 2 225 

Year3 657 

Year  1,039 

Year 5 1,477 

Year 6 to Year 10 7,065 

29.1.12 Risks Associated with Defined Benefit Plans 

a) Investment Risks 

The risk arises when the actual performance of the investments is lower than expectation and 
thus creating a shortfall in the funding objectives. 

b) Longevity Risks 

The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is 
measured at the plan level over the entire retiree population. 



Managerial remuneration & bonus 

Charge for defined benefit plan 
Contribution to defined contribution plan 

Rent and house maintenance 
Utilities 

Medical 

Conveyance 

Others 

- 	 - 	 1,408 1,081 
- 	 - 	 1,408 967 
- 	 - 	 1,042 984 
- 	 - 	 - 3,172 

67,942 	71,199 	431,715 538,430 

67,942 	71,199 	418,864 	526,057 
- 	 - 	1,264 	805 
- 	 - 	1,389 	1,003 
- 	 - 	6,340 	4,361 

Number of persons I 	 I 	 53 	56 

c) Salary Increase Risk 

The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The risk arises when 

the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly. 

d) Withdrawal Risk 

The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the benefit obligation. The 

movement of the liability can go either way. 
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COMPENSATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES 

Chief Executive 	 Executives 

2015 	2014 	2015 	2014 

(Rupees in '000) 	 (Rupees in '000) 

30.1 
	

The chief executive and certain executives are also provided with drivers, security arrangements and payment of travel 
bills in accordance with their terms of employment. 
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified as held to maturity, is based on quoted market price. Quoted 

securities classified as held to maturity are carried at cost. The fair value of unquoted equity securities, other than 
- investment in associates and subsidiaries, is determined on the basis of the break-up value of these investments as per their 
latest available audited financial statements. 

The fair value of unquoted debt securities, fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities, fixed term deposits and 
borrowings cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to the absence of a current and active market for these 

assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments. 

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly 

different from their carrying values since these are either short-term in nature or, in the case of customer loans and 

deposits, are frequently repriced. 

31.1 
	

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in 

making the measurements: 

Level I: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the 

assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. 
unobservable inputs). 

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair value 
hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised: 



2015 

I held lorlr;,oling As'ailal,Ie for Loans not 'lutloul 	 L.r, It 	I Le,'el 1 	 l,t'sclj 

sole leacelv,'i,Ie.v 

Oo balance shed 	Ona,,ci ii ito' Irtilileli Is ----------------------------- -------------------------- ----------- — ------------- llluullersi I 	'illl0)-- 	---------------------------------------------------------------- --- 

Fi'iaoci 	nor Is rican and a' lair value 

011I,_'r assets -lorward lorcign exchange 

conlracts /2 111 1 8.034 - - 1110,034 1,110.034 	 - 1.118.034 

- 	 - I nvcslineols 9 - 124,77! .022 - '24.771.022 	 - 124,77:,022 	 - 114,771,022 

fair value 

- (2asl'a ad bank ha lances will, lrcavnry bank - - 5,413,124 5,313,124 

• Ilal once' will, talker banks - - 246,427 246,427 

- lending In titoancial kioiin'iu,ns - ' 009,547 660.547 

- Advances /0 - 

- 

- 6,999,406 0.990.1116 

Oliver assels - - 273.579 273.070 

1,110,034 124,771.011 13,00203 130,191,139 

Financial liabilities rucaus on-il at fall cable 

Oilier Iii -liirssard lord gne vcloange 

conIraclo /7 3,463,130 - - 3.463.136 	 ' 3,463,130 	 - 3,403,136 

Financial lal,illies-  non u,,easnreala at lair color 

- hills payable 13 ' 206,917 206,947 

/4 . . 1lIa.on1.920 I00.11a1.926 - llorrowii,gs 

- Deposits and oilier aeco,,n,s /2 - - 20,9114,902 20.911,982 

- OIl icr liahi rlic . - 2,545,104 2,545, '04 

3,103,126 129,043,1139 133,31101115 

- 	- 	 Oiibtd nile 5' skeet floors to lnislriniiriI Is 

- Porovard nilrcliasc 1,1 ltrc'iinr excitor gceonoracns 20,3 217,070,002 ' - 117,070,0112 217.070,002 	 - 217,070,002 

- larosard sale 'More i/il exdttaliodcoIIlracls 20,3 220,015,005 - 220,615,005 	 - 220,615,005 	 - 270,615,005 

2014 

CarryvigAitinlot Fair vaine 

Now I Odd lot trading Available lhr Loan' and 'l'otal 	 inset 	I level 2 	level) 

sale lleceiaa blat Troll 

-- 
llisjnccx in 	000l------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

()it lnul;iiuee slit'eifinancial inslrn,,,e,, Is 

Other a-vets . tbnt'ard foreign exchange 

caultracIl /2 209,407 - 200,407 	 - 2911,407 	 - 290,407 

- lnvestn,v no 0 - 63,074,6111 - 63,074,6111 	 - 63,1174,6111 	 - 63,1174,0114 

Financial asse is not 

nocroured sit lair value 

- Cool, and hank haltiicen sv(ilu Ina lonry bank 0 ' - 4,329,097 4.320,607 

- Iltitnic eswi tLi ill icr banks - - 205,142 205,142 

- Lending In i(eoncial 'illilitniloliS — 
' ' 1,120,730 1,120,7511 

- Aulvn,,a en - 6111730511 0,1107.1150 

151,712 131,712 

299,407 63071,6114 13,203,331 75,667,422 

El nanchat liabilities n,easiart-d al lair value 

OilIer liabilities . l'orward linreign eneha nge 

eonlracls /2 2,5311,202 - 	 - 2,5311,292 - 	2,530,201 - 	2,530,202 

— 	 F'tnnneial litiI,ililies- not n,easretlut fair value 

- llills payable /3 , . 	4.607 '1,667 

14 - 	50507,015 50,502,6[5 - 	lire, nn'iu,gs ,  
- Deposits and oilier ac001nnls - 	1,501026 0,5011320 

— 	 - (SlOe, liiul,iliiies - 	2,417,105 2. l27.1105 

2,5311,202 - 	60,525,113 71,033,4115 

Oft ada lice slier I f,nai,eialiu,slrt,itettls 

- 11orward pueclitse ni li'reign en chance contracts  20.3 150,150,705 - 	 ' 1511,1 46,705 - 	(50,130,705 , 	150,130,705 
— 	 - l -'erwar,Jsaleol (re(''nccliang'contracts 20,3 153,051,919 . 	 - 153,05(0(0 - 	153,051,919 - 	(53,051,910 

31,1 	1 he Itranclie s lies noi disc loved the liuirvatnes Ii', I1I,a,lc (a li.tstrni,Iei,Is sash assliort-uenn leadnecceisahles and paya htes. l,eeaasn their carr, ing nil, oil .ilsarc rca si,ea lilt'dpprCOx'IiiiIiioi, n,l lair values  

- 



Number of persona 

Managerial remuneration & bonus 

Charge for contribution and defined benefit plan 
Medical 

495,596 513.227 
2,653 451 
1.408 244 

499687 513922 

32 SEGMENT DETAILS \VITIT RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES 

Total income 

Total expenses 

Net income 

Segment assets 

Segment liabilities 

Segment return on assets (ROA) (%) 

Segment cost of funds (%) 

Total income 

Total expenses 

Net income 

Segment assets 

Segment liabilities 

Segment return on assets (ROA) (%) 

Segment cost of funds (%) 

Corporate Trading & 
Finance Sales Others Total 

(Rupees in 0(H) 

472,716 5,960,921 - 5,533,637 
54 (2,392,615) (165,947) (2,712,116) 

3),62 ,68,246 (165,947) 2,820,868 

6,999,406 t31,tpfljjj 	_.___d!7 9 J 140,254,295 

6,438,497 t2O .5975f(2_ 6824412 ,133855 321 

122% 5.06% 0.99% 

2.61% 	 2.64% 	1.73% 

Corporate Trading & 
Finance Sates Others Total 

(Rupees in '000) ................ 
422,113 2,976,386 . 3,398,499 

,Jfl8,432 (1,775.407) (79822) j12 661 
283,681 1200,979 (79,822) 1.404.83% 

__AQaQSO fl9t73 1034,164 75,950,381 

5.370.178 60 713J63 7L4415ZL 

846% 4,711% 0.00% 

109% 317% 1,84% 

* Figures have been rearranged for Comparisost 

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has tIme ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial 
or operational decisions and includes head office, other branches of the Bank and Key Management personnel and staff retirement benefit funds. The 
transactions with related parties are conducted under normal course of business substantially on the same terms as those prevailing at the time for comparable 

transactions with unrelated parties and do not involve more than a normal risk. Pakistan branches of the Bank also provide advances to employees its accordance 
with their terms of employment. 

Details of the transactions with related pasties during the year and balances with them as at year end are as follows 

2015  
Stall Key Other ICBC Head Office Total 

retirement Management t,ranettet 
benefits Personnel 

(Rupees in 'BOO) 
Balance Sheet 

Balances with other banks - 5,312 240,734 246,046 
Landings to financial institutions - - 669,547 - 669,,47 
Borrowings - - 16,130,114 83,551,812 99,681,926 
Other liabilities - - - - - 

Profit and Loss 

Interest /ooser income - - 74,096 363 74,459 
Interest /other expense 3,816 491,679 336,596 339,172 1,111,173 

2014 
Staff Key Other ICOC Beast Office TothI 

retirement Management branches 
benefits Personnel 

--- --------- (Rupeesin'OOO) .................................... -. 
Balance Sheet 

Balances with other banks 

headings to financial institutions 
- - 48,415 246,347 294,762 

Borrowings 
- 
- - 1,129,730 - 1,129,730 

Other liabilities 
- 25,120.775 30,360,163 55.480.938 

- 4,28 1.396,916 1,401,044 

Profit and Loss 

Interest /other income 
Interest / other expense 

. 
75,523 370 75,893 

2.633 513,922 237,358 26.827 1,015,740 

33.1 Key Management Personnel 
2015 	 2014 

(Rupees in '000) 



34 	CAPITAL ASSESSMENT AND ADEQUACY 

34.1 	Scope of Applications 

Amounts subject to Pre - Basel III treatment 

The Basel-III Framework is applicable to the branches. Standardized Approach is used for calculating the Capital 
Adequacy for Credit and Market risks, whereas, Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) is used for Operational Risk Capital 

Adequacy purpose. 

34.2 	Capital Management 

34.2.1 Objectives and goals of managing capital 

The branches manage its capital to attain following objectives and goals: 

- an appropriately capitalized status, as defined by banking regulations; 
- acquire strong credit ratings that enable an optimized funding mix and liquidity sources at lesser costs; 

- cover all risks underlying business activities and 
- retain flexibility to harness future investment opportunities, build and expand even in stressed times. 

34.2.2 Statutory Minimum Capital Requirement and Capital Adequacy Ratio 

The State Bank of Pakistan through its BSD Circular No.07 of 2009 dated April 15, 2009 requires the assigned capital 
(net off losses) for branches of foreign banks operating in Pakistan to be raised to Rs. 3 billion by the financial year 
December 2010. The Head Office capital account of the branches for the year ended December 3 1, 2015 stands at Rs. 

3.8 billion and is in compliance with the SBP requirement for the said year. 

The capital adequacy ratio of the Bank is subject to the Basel Ill capital adequacy guidelines stipulated by the State 
Bank of Pakistan through its BPRD Circular No. 06 of 2013 dated August 15, 2013. These instructions are effective 
from December 31, 2013 in a phased manner with full implementation intended by December 31, 2019. Under Basel Ill 

guidelines banks are required to maintain the following ratios on an ongoing basis: 

Phase-in arrangement and lull implementation of the minimum capital requirements: 

Sr. No Ratio  2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 31-Dec-19 

I CET 1 5.0% 5.5% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0%1 6.0% 6.0% 

2 ADTI 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 

3 Tier I 6.5% 7.0% 7.5% 7.5% 7.5% 7.5% 7.5% 

4 Total Capital 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 

5 *CCB 0.0% 0.00% 0.25% 0.650/6 1.280/. 1.90% 2.50% 

6 Total Capital Plus CCB 10% 10.00% 10.25% 10.65% 1 1.28% 11.90% 12.50% 

* Capital Conservative Buffer 

34.2.3 Branches' regulatory capital is analyzed into three tiers 

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CETI), which includes head office capital account and un-remitted profit after all 

regulatory adjustments applicable on CETI (refer note 34.4). 



Tier 2 capital, which includes Subordinated debt! Instruments, share premium on issuance of Subordinated debt! 

Instruments, general provisions for loan losses (up to a maximum of 1.25% of credit risk weighted assets), gross 
reserves on revaluation of fixed assets and equity investments and foreign exchange translation reserves after all 
regulatory adjustments applicable on Tier-2 (refer to note 34.4). As at 31 Dec'smber 2015, the Branches' Tier 2 
capital is zero. 

The required capital adequacy ratio (10% of the risk-weighted assets) is achieved by the branches through improvement 
in the capital base, asset quality at the existing volume level, ensuring better recovery management and composition of 

asset mix with low risk. Banking operations are categorized as either trading book or banking book and risk-weighted 
assets are determined according to specified requirements of the State Bank of Pakistan that seek to reflect the varying 

levels of risk attached to assets and off-balance sheet exposures. The total risk-weighted exposures comprise of the 
credit risk, market risk and operational risk. 

Basel-III Framework enables a more risk-sensitive regulatory capital calculation to promote long term viability of the 
branches. It is critical that it is able to continuously monitor the exposure across entire organization and aggregate the 
risks so as to take an integrated approach/view. Maximization of the return on risk-adjusted capital is the principal basis 
to be used in determining how capital is allocated within the branches to particular operations. The branches remained 
compliant with all externally imposed capital requirements through out the year. Further, there has been no material 
change in the branches' management of capital during the year. 

343 	Capital Adequacy 

The main objective of the capital management is to improve the financial position of the branches to support the growth 
in business. 

The branches' capital management approach is driven by its desire to maintain a strong capital base to support the 
development of its business, to meet regulatory capital requirements at all times and at the same time maintaining 
creditor and market confidence. 

In implementing current capital requirements the State Bank of Pakistan requires banks to maintain minimum Capital 

Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of 10% as of December 31, 2015 whereas CAR stood at 13.12% at the year ended December 
31, 2015. 

The Bank calculates capital adequacy ratio for credit risk, market risk and operational risk based upon requirements 
under Basel Accord as per guidelines issued by the State Bank of Pakistan from time to time in this regard. 

Major credit risk in respect of on and off-balance sheet exposures are mainly claims on banks and corporates. 

Market risk exposures are mainly foreign exchange positions. For market risk in its portfolio, based on the methodology 
provided by SBP which takes account of specific and general market risk capital charge for interest rate risk using the 
maturity method. 

For calculation of operational risk capital charge using the Basic Indicator Approach as prescribed by SBP vide their 
Circular No. 08 dated 27 June 2006. 

The Bank's potential risk exposures shall remain in these exposure types. 

Sensitivity and stress testing of the Branch under different risk factors depicts that the capital adequacy ratio is above 
the regulatory requirements. Is- 



2015 	 2014 
(Rupees in '000)----------- 

	

3,780,941 
	

3,627,239 

	

2,620,351 
	

844,926 

	

6,401,292 
	

4,472,165 
2,318 

	

6,398,974 
	

4,472,165 

LLH 
6,398,974 	4,472,165 

35,401 

35,401 

35,401 

35,401 

35,401 

- 	 35,401 
6,398,974 	4,507,566 

48,765,437 	30.774.097 

13.12% 14.53% 
13.12% 14.53% 
13.12% 14.65% 

L L 

LIIIIITh?1 I 	903°/4 

	

6.00% 	 5.50% 

	

7.50% 	 7.00% 

	

10.25% 	 10.00% 

34.4 	Capital Adequacy Ratio as at December 31, 2015 

Common Equity Tier I capital (CETI): Instruments and reserves 
I 	Fully Paid-up Capital/ Capital deposited with SBP 

2 	Balance in Share l'rcutiuni Account 

3 	Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares 

4 	Discount on Issue of shares 

S 	General/ Statutory Reserves 

6 	Gain/(Losses) on derivatives held as Cash Flow I-ledge 

7 	Unappropriated/oni-emitled profits! (losses) 

8 	Minority Interests arising from CETI capital instruments issued to third parties by consolidated 
bank subsidiaries (amount allowed in CETI capital of the consolidation group) 

9 	CET I before Regulatory Adjustments 

ID 	Total regulatory adjustments applied to CETI (Note 34.4. 1) 

II 	Common Equity Tier I 

Additional Tier I (AT 1) Capital 

12 	Qualifying Additional Tier- I capital instruments plus any related share premium 
13 	of- which: Classified as equity 
14 	of which: Classified as liabilities 

IS 	Additional Tier-I capital instruments issued to third parties by consolidated subsidiaries (amount 
allowed in group AT I) 

16 	of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out 
17 	AT I be to me reg vla I  w-y a dj ustmmi C's Is 
18 	Total regulatory adjustment applied to ATI capital (Note 34.4.2) 
19 	Additional Tier I capital after regulatory adjustments 
20 	Additional Tier I capital recognized for capital adequacy 

21 	Tier I Capital (CETI + admissible AFt) (11+20) 

Tier 2 Capital 

22 	Qnali lying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel ill plus any related share premium 
23 	Tier 2 capital instruments subject to phase out arrangement issued under pre-Basel 3 rules 

24 	Tier 2 capital nistrtorrents issued to third parties by consolidated subsidiaries (amount allowed in 
group tier 2) 

- 	 25 	of wlsiels: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out 
26 	General provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to maximum of 1.25% of Credit Risk 

Weighted Assets 
27 	Revaluation Reserves (net of taxes) 

-- 	 28 	of which: Revaluation reserves on fixed assets 

29 	of which: Unrealized gains/losses on AFS 

30 	Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves 

31 	Undisclosed/Other Reserves (if any) 

- 	 32 	1'2 before regulatory adjustments 

33 	Total regulatory adjustment applied to T2 capital (Note 34.43) 
34 	Tier 2 capital (12) after regulatory adjustments 

35 	Tier 2 capital recognized for capital adequacy 

- 	 36 	Portion of Additional Tier I capital recognized in Tier 2 capital 

37 	Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy 

38 	'1 OTAL CAPITAl, (TI + admissible 12) (21+37) 

39 	Total Risk Weighted Assets (ttW'A) (for details refer Note 34.7) 

Capital Ratios and buffers (in percentage of risk weighted assets) 
40 	CETI to total ItWA 

41 . Tier-I capital to total RWA 

42 	'total capital to total RWA 

43 	Bank specific b Li tier requirement (nsin i mum CETI  requ imcisseist Plus capital conservation buffer 
plus any other buffer requirement) 

44 	of which: capital conservation buffer requirement 
45 	of wInch: coo uicrevcl I cal ho 'ft F requirement 
46 	of which: D-S113 or C-S 113 huller requirement 
47 	CUr I available to niect btmtThrs (as a percentage of risk weighted assets) 

National mnininnun capital reqni -einents prescribed by SUP 
48 	CE'l'l minimum ratio 

49 	Tier I n,ininmnn, ratio 

50 	Total capital nmimnn,uin ratio 



Regulatory Adjustments and Additional Information 

2015 

Amounts 

so hject to Pre- 
Amount 	 Amount 

Basel Ill 
treatment 
----- (Rupees in '000) - 

2014 

Amounts 

subject to Pre- 
Basel Ill 
treatment 

34.4.1 Common Equity Tier I capital: Regulatory adjustments 

I 	Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liability) 

2 	All other intangibles (net of any associated deferred tax liability) 

3 	Shortfall in provisions against classified assets 

4 	Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from temporary 

differences (net ofrelated tax liability) 

5 	Defined-benefit pension fund net assets 

6 	Reciprocal cross holdings in CETI capital instruments ofbanking, financial and insurance cntitis 

7 Cash flow hedge reserve 
S Investment in own shares! CETI instruments 

9 	Sceuritization gain on sale 
lO Capital shortfall of regulated subsidiaries 

II Deficit on account of revaluation from bank's holdings of fixed assets! AFS 
12 Investments in the capital instruments ofbanking, financial and insurance entities that are outsid 

the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued 

share capital (amount above 10% threshold) 
13 Significant investments in the common stocks of banking, financial and insurance entities that 

are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount above 10% threshold) 

14 Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10% threshold, net of 

related sax liability) 

IS Amount exceeding 15% threshold 

Id 	of which: significant investments in she common stocks of financial entities 

17 	of which; deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences 
IS National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CETI capital 

19 	Investments in TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit 

20 	Any other deduction specified by SBP (mention details) 

21 Adj its uncut to CET  due to insufficient All and Tier 2 to cover dedsictions 
22 Total regulatory adjustments applied to CETI (suns of Ito 21) 

	
2,318 

34.4.2 Additional Tier-I & Tier-1 Capital: regulatory adjustments  

23 Investment in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed limit [SEP specific adjttstnicnt] 	 - 	 - 

24 Investment in own AT] capital instruments 	 - 	 - 

25 Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier I capital instruments ofbanking, financial and 

insurance entities 	 - 	 - 
26 Investments in the capital instruments ofhankitsg, financial and insurance entities that are outside 

she scope ofregulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10% ofthe issued 

share capital (amount above 10% threshold) 	 - 	 - 

27 Significant investments in the capital instruments ofbanking, financial and insurance entities that 

are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation 	 - 

28 Portion ofdeduction applied 50:50 to Tier-I and Ticr-2 capital based on prc-Basel Ill treatment 

which, during transitional period, remain subject to deduction from additional tier-] capital 

29 Adjustments to Additional Tier I due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions 	 - 	 - 

30 Total regulatory adjustment applied to ATI capital (sun, of 23 to 29) 	 - 	 - 

34.4.3 Tier 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments 
31 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to Tier-I and Tier-2 capital based on pre-Basel Ill treatment 

which, during transitional period, remain subject to deduction from tier-2 capital 	 - 	 - 

32 Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments ofbanking, financial and insurance entities 	 - 	 - 

33 Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument 	 - 	 - 
34 Investments in she capital instruments ofbanking, financial and insurance entities that are outside 

the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued 

share capital (amount above 10% threshold) 	 - 	 - 

35 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and insurance 
entities that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation 	 - 	 - 

36 Total regulatory adjustment applied to T2 capital (stun of 31 to 35) 	 - 	 - 



2015 	 2014 
(Rupees in '000) 

34.4.4 Additional Information 

Risk Weighted Assets subject to pre-Basel Ill treatment 

37 	Risk weighted assets in respect of deduction items (which during the transitional period will be risk 
weighted subject to Pre-Basel Ill Treatment) 

(i) of which: deferred tax assets 
(ii) of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets 
(iii) of which: Recognized portion of investment in capital of banking, financial and insurance 

entities where holding is less than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity 
(iv) of which: Recognized portion of investment in capital of banking, financial and insurance 

entities where holding is more than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity 
Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting) 

38 	Non-significant investments in the capital of other financial entities 
39 	Significant investments in the common stock of financial entities 
40 	Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability) 

Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 
41 	Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to standardized approach 

(prior to application of cap) 

42 	Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardized approach 
43 	Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject to internal ratings-based 

approach (prior to application of cap) 
44 	Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under internal ratings-based approach 

34.5 	Capital Structure Reconciliation 

Table; 34.5.1 

23,028,519 

Balance sheet as Under regulatory 
in published 	scope of 

financial 	consolidation 
statements 

2015 
(Rupees in '000) 

Assets 
Cash and balances with treasury banks 
Balanced with other banks 
Lending to financial institutions 
Investments 
Advances 
Operating fixed assets 
Deferred tax assets 
Other assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities & Equity 
Bills payable 
Borrowings 
Deposits and other accounts 
Sub-ordinated loans 
Liabilities against assets subject 10 finance lease 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Share capital/ Head office capital account 
Reserves 

Unremitted profit / Accumulated (losses) 
Minority Interest 
Surplus on revaluation of investments- net of tax 
Total equity 

Total liabilities & equity 

5,413,124 5,413,124 
246,427 246,427 
669,547 669,547 

124,771,022 124,771,022 
6,999,406 6,999,406 

662,763 662,763 
41,078 41,078 

1,450,928 1.450,928 

140,254,295 140,254,295 

	

266,947 	 266,947 

	

00,081,926 	100,081,926 

	

26,948,982 	26,948.982 

	

6,557,466 	6,557.466 

	

133,855,321 	133,855,321 

3,780,941 3,780,941 

2,620,35 2,620,351 

L (2,318) (2.318) 
6,398,974 6,398,974 

140,254,295 	140,254,295 



246,427 
669,547 

124,771,022 

6,999,406 

662,763 
41,078 

1,450,928 

140,254.295 

266,947 
100,081,926 
26,948,982 

6,557,466 
133,855,321 

6,398,974 

5,413,124 
246,427 
669,547 

124,771,022 

a 

b 
c 

d 
e 

6,999,406 

f 

g 
662,763 

41,078 

h 

1,450,928 - 

k 

140,254,295 

266,947 
100,081,926 

26,948,982 

on 
 

n 

0 

p 
q 

3,780,941 
3,780,941 

- it 

- 	v 

	

2620,351 	w X 

 

y 
Z 

(2,318) 

	

(2,318) 	
aa 
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Table: 34.5.2 

Balance sheet as Under 

in published regulatory scope 
financial of consolidation 

statements 
2015 	 Reference 

(Rupees in '000) 

Assets 
Cash and balances with treasury banks 
Balanced with other banks 
Lending to financial institutions 
Investments 

of which: Non-significant invest,ne,,ts in the capital instruments of honking, 

financial and insurance entities exceeding 10% threshold 

of which: significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, 

financial and insurance entities exceeding regulatory threshold 

of which: Mutual Funds exceeding regulatory threshold 

of which: reciprocal crossholding of capital instrument (separate for CETI, ATI, 

T2) 

of which: others (mention details) 

Advances 
shortfall in provisions/ excess oftotal EL amount over eligible pro visions under 

IRS 

general provisions reflected in Tier 2 capital 

Fixed Assets 
Deferred Tax Assets 

of which: DTAs that rely onfieture profitability excluding those arisingfrom 

temporary differences  

of which: DTAs arisingfro;n temporary differences exceeding regulatory threshold 

Other assets 
of which: Goodwill 

ofwhich: Intangibles 

of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities & Equity 
Bills payable 
Borrowings 
Deposits and other accounts 
Sub-ordinated loans 

of which: eligible for inclusion in A TI 

of which: eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 
Deferred tax liabilities 

of which: DTLs related to goodwill 

of which: DTLs i-elated to intangible assets 

of which: DTLs related to defined pension fund net assets 

of which: other deferred tax liabilities 

Other liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Share capital 
of which: amount eligible for CETI 

of which: amount eligible for A TI 

Reserves 
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CETI(p,ovide bizokup) 

of which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 

Unrcniitted profit I Accumulated (losses) 

Minority Interest 
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CETI 

of which: portion eligible for inclusion in A TI 
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 

Surplus on revaluation of assets 
of which: Revaluation reserves on Fixed Assets 

of which: Unrealized Gains/Losses on AFS 

In case of Deficit on revaluation (deduction front CETI) 

Total equity 

Total liabilities & Equity 140,254,295 	140,254,295 

 



Table: 34.5.3 

	

Component of 	Source based on 

regulatory 	reference 

	

capital reported 	number from 

by branches 	 step 2 

2015 
(Rupees in '000) 

Common Equity Tier! capital (CETI): Instruments and reserves  

I Fully Paid-up CapitaV Capital deposited with SUP 	 3,780,941 

2 Balance in Share Premium Account 	 - 

- 	3 Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares 	 - 

4 General! Statutory Reserves 	 - 

5 Gain/(Losses) on derivatives held as Cash Flow Hedge 	 - 

6 Unappropriated/unremitted profits/ (losses) 	 2,620,351 

7 Minority Interests arising from CETI capital instruments issued to third party by consolidated bank 	 - 

subsidiaries (amount allowed in CETI capital of the consolidation group)  

8 CET I before Regulatory Adjustments 	 6,401,292 

Common Equity Tier I capital: Regulatory adjustments  

9 Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liability) 	 - 

10 All other intangibles (net of any associated deferred tax liability) 	 - 

II Shortfall of provisions against classified assets 	 - 

12 Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from temporary 	 - 

differences (net of related tax liability) 

13 Defined-benefit pension fund net assets 	 - 

14 Reciprocal cross holdings in CETI capital instruments 	 - 

IS Cash flow hedge reserve 	 - 

16 Investment in own shares! CETI instruments 	 - 

17 Securitization gain on sale 	 - 

IS Capital shortfall of regulated subsidiaries 	 - 

19 Deficit on account of revaluation from bank's holdings of fixed assets! AFS 	 2,318 

20 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside 	 - 

the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued 

share capital (amount above 10% threshold) 

21 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and insurance entities 	 - 

that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount above 10% threshold) 

22 Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10% threshold, net of 	 - 

related tax liability) 

23 Amount exceeding 15% threshold 	 - 
24 	of which: significant investments in the common stocks of financial entities 	 - 

25 	of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences 	 - 

26 National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CETI capital 	 - 

27 	of which: Investment in TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit 	 - 

28 	of which: Any other deduction specified by SUP (mention details) 	 - 

29. Regulatory adjustment applied to CETI due to insufficient AT[ and Tier 2 to cover deductions 	 - 

30 Total regulatory adjustments applied to CETI (sum of 9 to 29) 	 2,318 

31 Common Equity Tier 1 	 6,398,974 

Additional Tier I (AT 1) Capital  
32 Qualifying Additional Tier-] instruments plus any related share premium 	 - 

33 	of which: Classified as equity 	 - 

34 	of which: Classified as liabilities 	 - 

35 Additional Tier-I capital instruments issued by consolidated subsidiaries and held by third parties 	 - 

(amount allowed in group AT I) 

36 	of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out 	 - 

37 AT! before regulatory adjustments 	 - 

Additional Tier I Capital: regulatory adjustments  

38 Investment in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed limit (SUP specific adjustment) 	 - 
39 Investment in own AT] capital instruments 	 - 

40 Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier I capital instruments 	 - 

41 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside 	 - 
the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued 
share capital (amount above 10% threshold) 

42 Significant investments in the capital inslruments issued by banking, financial and insurance entities 	 - 
that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation 

43 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capital based on pre-Basel Ill 	 - 
treatment which, during transitional period, remain subject to deduction from tier-I capital 

44 Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier I due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions 	 - 
45 Total of Regulatory Adjustment applied to ATI capital (suns of 38 to 44) 	 - 
46 Additional Tier ! capital 	 - 

47 Additional Tier I capitol recognized for capital adequacy 	 - 
-- 	 48 Tier I Capital (CETI + admissible All) (31+47) 	 6,398.974 

(ad) 



Table: 34.5.3 Component of Source based on 

regulatory reference 

- capital reported number from 

by branches step 2 

2015 

(Rupees in 000) 

Tier 2 Capital 

49 Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel Ill plus any related share premium - (a) 

— 	50 Capital instruments subject to phase out arrangement from tier 2 (Pre-Basel III instruments) - 

51 Tier 2 capital instruments issued to third party by consolidated subsidiaries (amount allowed in - (z) 

group tier 2) 

52 of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out - 

53 - General Provisions or general reserves For loan losses-up to maximum of 1.250/ of Credit Risk - (g) 

Weighted Assets 

54 Revaluation Reserves 

55 of which: Revaluation reserves on fixed assets - portion of (an) 

56 	of which: Unrealized Gains/Losses on AFS 

57 Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves  

58 Undisclosed/Other Reserves (if any) 	 - 

59 T2 before regulatory adjustments 	 - 

Tier 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments 

60 Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capital based on pre-Basel Ill 	 - 

treatment which, during transitional period, remain subject to deduction from tier-2 capital 

61 Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments 	 - 

62 Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument 	 - 

63 Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside 	 - 	 (ae) 

the scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued 

share capital (amount above 10% threshold) 

64 Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and insurance entities 	 - 	 (at) 

that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation 

65 Amount of Regulatory Adjustment applied to T2 capital (sum of 60 to 64) 	 - 

66 Tier 2 capital (T2) 

67 Tier 2 capital recognized for capital adequacy 

68 Excess Additional Tier I capital recognized in Tier 2 capital 

69 Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy 

70 TOTAL CAPITAL (TI + admissible T2) (48+69) 
	

6,39&974 



34.6 Main Features Template of Regulatory Capital Instruments 

Disclosure template for main features of regulatory capital instruments 

S. No. Main Features Common Shares Instrument - 2 Instrument -3 

1 Issuer NA NA NA 

2 Unique identifier (eg KSE Symbol or Bloomberg 
identifier etc.)  

NA NA NA 

3 Governing law(s) of the instrument NA NA NA 

Regulatory treatment NA NA NA 

4 Transitional Basel III rules NA NA NA 

5 Post-transitional Basel III rules NA NA NA 

6 Eligible at solo/ group! group & solo NA NA NA 

7 Instrument type NA NA NA 

8 Amount recognized in regulatory capital 
(Currency in PKR thousands, as of reporting date)  

NA NA NA 

9 Par value of instrument NA NA NA 

10 Accounting classification NA NA NA 

11 Original date of issuance NA NA NA 

12 Perpetual or dated NA NA NA 

13 Original maturity date NA NA NA 

14 Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval NA NA NA 

15 Optional call date, contingent call dates and 
redemption amount 

NA NA NA 

16 Subsequent call dates, if applicable NA NA NA 

Coupons / dividends NA NA NA 
17 Fixed or floating dividend! coupon NA NA NA 
18 coupon rate and any related index! benchmark NA NA NA 
19 Existence of 	dividend stopper NA NA NA 
20 Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or 

mandatory  
NA NA NA 

21 Existence of step up or other incentive to 
redeem 

NA NA NA 

22 Noncumulative or cumulative NA NA NA 
23 Convertible or non-convertible NA NA NA 
24 If convertible, conversion trigger (s) NA NA NA 
25 If convertible, fully or partially NA NA NA 
26 If convertible, conversion rate NA NA NA 
27 If convertible, mandatory or optional 

conversion 
NA NA NA 

28 If convertible, specify instrument type 
convertible into 

NA NA NA 

29 If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it 
converts into NA NA NA 

30 Write-down feature NA NA NA 
31 If write-down, write-down trigger(s) NA NA NA 
32 If write-down, full or partial NA NA NA 
33 If write-down, permanent or temporai-y NA NA NA 
34 If temporary writc-down, description of 

write-tip mechanism NA NA NA 

35 Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation 
(specify instrument type immediately senior to 
instrument 

NA NA NA 

36 Non-compliant transitioned features NA NA NA 
37 	Iff yes, specify non-compliant features NA NA NA 

odw 



34.7 lUsh Weighted Assets 

The capital requirements for the banking group as per the major risk categories should be indicated in the manner given below:' 

	

Capital Requirements 	lUshWeighted Assets 

2015 	2014 	2015 	2014 

- 	 (Rupees in '000) 

Credit Risk 

On-Balance sheet 
ljosssiheettostiuIditrdiZedaroaeliSiinleorCon1re1]eh15ive 

Cash & cash equivalent 

Sovereign 
Public Sector entities 

Banks 
Corporate 
t(etait 
Residential Mortgages 
Past Due loans 

Operating l:ixed Assets 

Dc ilèred tax asset 
Other assets 

41,566 35,459 415,660 3548 

- 35,980 - 359,800 

25701 37,340 257,008 373,403 

$21,047 393,268 5,210,472 3,932,682 

- 356 3,560 

331 466 3,308 4,662 

66,276 8,334 662,763 183,341 	I 

10,270 - 102,695 - 
85,082 1,450,928 850,823 

810,284 	606,235 	8,1102,834 	0,062,369 

Portfolios suhj No Intenuit Ratino Based ILRB Apj roach 

e.g. 	Corporate. Sovereign. Corporate, Retail, Sceoritization etc. 

- Off-Balance Sheet 
Nun-market related 

t:n)ane i mi l guarantees 
Acceptances 
I 'Cr tbrm an cc Related C onti ngen ci us 
Trade Related Contingencies 

Market related 
Foreign Exchange contracts 
Derivatives 

Equity Lxposurc Risk in the Ranking Book 
Under simple risk weight ne thod 

Listed I qitit y Investment  
Unlisted Equity Investment 

Under Internal Modcl approach 

123,7" L 53,9110 1,237 , SN7 539,408 
2,504,373 1,576,035 25,043,732 15,760,350 

6,459 5.665 €4,591 56,658 
2,634,621 1,635,640 26,346,210 16,356,416 

L 60,923 537,587 
6091 

53,759 60,923 537,587 609.234 

3,498,664 	2,302,848 	34986,631 	23,028,519 

Market Risk 

Capital 
Interest rate risk 

Equity position risk 

Foreign Exchange risk 

Open'!) em of Risk 

ertitionaIrisks 

Total Risk Weighted Exposures 

Capital Adequacy Ratios 

713,883 521,663 3,923,538 5,216,638 

L 14,107 35,896 1 	__176,118 11S,961 

	

727,990 	557,559 	9,099,876 	5,575,601 

	

374,314 	216,997 	4,678,930 	2,169,977 

	

4,600,968 	3,077,404 	48,765,437 	30,774,097 

2015 	 2014 

fltototWA 
550% 14.53% 

Tier- I capital to total R WA 

Total Ca dlii to tat it RWA tj loud capital plus CCB to RWA 
10.25% 13.12% N/A 



34.8 Leverage Ratio 

The State Bank of Pakistan (SUP) through its BPRD Circular No. 06 of 2013 has issued instructions regarding implementation of 
parallel run of leverage ratio reporting and its components from December 31, 2013 to December 31, 201 7.During this period 
the final calibration, and any further adjustments to the definition, will be completed, with a view to set the leverage ratio as a 
seperate capital standard on December31, 2018. Banks are required to disclose the leverage ratio from December 31, 2015. 

The Base] Ill leverage ratio is defined as the capital measure (the numerator) divided by the exposure measure (the denominator), 

with this ratio expressed as a percentage: 

Leverage Ratio = Tier I capital (after related deductions) 
Total Exposure 

As at December 31,2015 the Bank's Leverage ratio stood at 3.90% which is well above the minimum requirement of 3.0%. 

2015 	 2014 

(Rupees in '000) 
On-Balance Sheet Assets 
Cash and balances with treasury banks 
Balances with other banks 
Leadings to financial institutions 
Investments 
Advances 
Operating fixed assets 

Deferred tax assets 
Financial Derivatives (Al) 
Other assets 

Total Assets (A) 

Derivatives (On-Balance Sheet) 
Interest Rate 
Equity 

Foreign Exchange & gold 
Precious Metals (except gold) 

Commodities 
Credit Derivatives (protection brought & sold) 
Any other derivatives 
Total Derivatives (A.1) 

Off-Balance Sheet Items excluding derivatives 
Direct Credit Substitutes (i.e. Acceptances, general guarantees for indebtness etc.) 
Performance-related Contingent Liabilities (i.e. Guarantees) 

Trade-related Contingent Liabilities (i.e. Letter of Credits) 
Lending of securities or posting of securties as collaterals 
Ljndrawn committed facilities (which are not cancellable) 
Unconditionally cancellable commitments 
Commitments in respect of operating leases 

Commitments for the acquisition of operating fixed assets 
Other commitments 
Total Off-Balance Sheet Items excluding Derivatives (B) 

Commitments in respect of Derivatives - Off Balance Sheet Items 
(Derivatives having negative fair value are also included) 

Interest Rate 
Equity 

Foreign Exchange & gold 
Precious Metals (except gold) 
Commodities 

Credit Derivatives (protection sold and bonght)* 

Other derivatives 
Total Derivatives (C) 

Tier-1 Capital 

Tolal Exposures (sum of A,U and C) 
Leverage Ratio 

5,413,124 
246,427 
669,547 

36,967,662 
6,999,406 

662,763 
41,078 

1,118,034 

52,450,935 

1,118,034 

1,118,034 

3,264,603 
106,132,155 

793,946 

236,111 

110,426,815 

1,091,875 

1,091,875 

6,398,974 

163,969,625 
3.90% 

4,329,698 
295,142 

1,129,730 
63,074,604 
6,087,050 

183,340 

299,487 
551,336 

75,950,3 87 

299,487 

299,487 

2,275,517 
62,174,283 

315,081 

319,444 

65,084,325 

947,975 

947,975 

4,507,566 
141,982,687 

3.17% 

* Exposure from investments is reduced, as the S13P vide their letter ref no. BPRDIBA&CP/661/006094/5 dated 12 March 
2015 has given a special approval for reduetint in the risk weight from 100% to 20% on those Government Securities which 
are direct result of currency swap agreements with the SUP. 



35 	RISK MANAGEMENT 

l'Iac prilnaty obteerive of lire Risk Man agcirrerst Systcui is to sa fegiiarcl lire B moe Ises' capital, their firtaircial resources and profitability fro u van oils risks - The bi-aircises risk 

managenrent policies are designed to identify and analyze all risks, to set appropriale risk It it, all controls, to measure and monitor the same hrough reliable hianageirsetti 

Iirlontsiiltoit Sysletsi. 

i'Iitsse rtion Isreseiris  trio nssatiair aisoti t the lsr;itrclse a exposrire to, ansi it_c nrahtt5cine nt inst conlrol 0!', i'isks, in aat'iirtt inC the 'an 	ty risks assoettleet svitlt its rIse of tiiraireisl 

ittstrstiriciits. Ntosl ofilte l'tioeliotss speetlied below lsas'e been parfcrnred at ltotd srl'liee 1,,el. 

35.1 	Credit risk 

Credo Risk Management to 	s ticoirrisass idetit ill cat toti. ass essirserrl. irseasrlre tIre lit. rrlott It or-tag and control oft h ecre clii exposures. In Ite Branches ecperiertce, a key to 

ftecrivc credit risk maiaagarnenl is a well ritougttl out bitsitaeas alraicgy, lisa b rarrctte a I'oesta over tire corn itsg yearn iv ill be 10 too tier enhance risk tnotlels, processes and 

sysrerrssittlrasrruentrre, it, bite svirir its atrsbition robring issaxttisstin sopisisiteatiora to the risk tiraitageissettl ftrttcrion. 

Tise brairelics. as per Slate Bank of Pakisrats C nielel uses, calculated its Capital Aetcqsiocy Ratio (CAR) based arr die SBP Cii del ttses on Banal ill. Processes lsas'e been at for 

ise-trirroll itte systetna & proced liree, in fonsaat iois reeitnologv capahihr es attsl risk govsrttance strucisire to 111cc! the requ iretnettit oft Ire advatteed approaches as oe ii. 

- The I lead 0 flice Iran delegaicd rentaotrsthi  lily for the usoraageiss star of credit I is k to Ih, credit cotttintir cc svhic Ii is responsible to, rite oversigirt of rite bratseltes' crest it risk in 

respect of: 

• Foriiattlat ursg credit poheiet - Establishing rite authorization slntclni'e 

Rev icwtis g  and assessing credit risk 

1.i slims g  eoncentralton of exposure 10 eoitiste ijasfi ies 

Developing arrel tuiaintainiirg the Branches' risk gradistg 

l(es'iewitsgeoiss pl  ianee orb usiness riirts 

Providitsg advice, an idartce and special isi skills to promote heel practice in the ntairapetsteis I of credit risk. 

'FIre laraiselrea save tattitt-up and rnai stained a eorittd loan portfolio in icons of well-defined Credit taoiicy.  ]is credit cyst sariots sysietti conspcises of we tt'desigtted credit  

appraisal. sanctioning and review procecl sires for ittc purpose of etttp liasizuag prud etice ill tcaelitsg activities oust airs ttrtng site high gnat t ly of asset portfolio As part of 

pntdersi pracliee.s. die itraisagetitenl coitsincta pra-fiact at tdaiiots of iass or cases fons integrated risk point of viess. Tite Bank irraasageo its portfolio oft oan assets sstill 

a view 10 trait concentrations in tanns of risk qttality, geagmaptsv.irdsi siry. titatnnity and large exposure. 

35.1.1 	Credit Risk - General Disclosures Base! IC Specific 

The taiarac ties are stuiisg The Standardizcei Approach (TSA) of SBP Band II accord for it,, purpose of estiirsat i isg Credit Risk Weighted Asseis. U ndsr TSA, batsk.sare a I lowed 

10 rake into corssiderait on exransal raiiirg(s) of couttler-parey(s) for the purpose of csienit at itsg Risk Weighted Asters. 

- 	 35.1.2 	Disclosures for portfolio sulrject to the Slantiartlureet A1aprrr aoti& Su1icrvisury risk weiglris in rise lRiH A ppriraeti- Basci II specific 

Esteraai ratings 

SUP Baset Ii grndet i nes reqsure btitsks to use ratings assigrsed by specified Et- tetisal Credit Anna sirsen t Agetseies ([('Alt) isatrie ly  PAC RA, JCR-V IS, Moody,, Fitch arid 

Su .... laid  & Poors 

The braisette suse extemal ratings br tire laurposen of coisaput ittg the risk sve igltts its per t lie Basel II frairscsvork. For cx post res wtdt a cotsiract tral iriaturity of teas ilsan or 

eqrnal to one year, sisorl-leno ralitsg given by approved Rating Agsrsciea is noest, svisv....,, for long-rena expsss ue "ill, naatitrity of great Cr than one year loirg'leriri rating is 

,,,ad.  

- 	 Where there are usa rat iragu availabte, rIle lower rating is considered arsd svttere there are three or niere ratings the second - lowest rating is cotisideryd, 

35.1.3 	Disclosureawi U, rca poet to Credit Risk Miii gti I inn for Slant! art1 iced anti 'ki1t. pproaehes- it trsei II s cci fir 

35.1.3.I 	Credit risk rrnitr'5u lion policy 

- The branches define collateral as the assets or lights provided to the Bank by tire harrower or a third parry it) order to secure a eresh I facility. rite brsiaciaes would have fl  lie 

rights of secured creditor in respect of die assets / contracts offered at security tbr the olat gal toirs of rite iso rrosvr r / obligor. 

35.1.3.2 	Collateral vairra tin" anti m ana gerssent 

Aasripuiatesl in the SUP Base! Il guidelines, lire laraiscltes use tite eorrrprehetisisca1aprsractr tsar coilnicrai vatriaiioii. Under this approach, the Bank reelures its crcclilesposure 

loacoirnret'iaaily when calculating its cspilai teqstrretrierrls to the extersl ofrisk nurigarisan provided by lire eligilale financial collateral as specified in lire ltasei Ii guidelines. Ira 

line with Based II ganidehrres, the braisriaes In ake adjustments in eligible coitaterale received for possible frt mile ft uelsi arione in this value of use collateral in line with file 

eq lire nietits specified by SUP gstidctiires. These aslj t tstisscis ts, also referred to as 'haircuts', in produce volatility-adjsisteel ainouttis for collateral. are reduced lam else 

to cutri pub use capital charge based oil the applicable risk - weights. 

- 	 35.1.3.3 Ty pet rr f rollaterum laken by the b nineties 

ihe isrirticlres rleieniaiire ill. appropt'iitte eottaierai In, ,act, facility based sais die type cafproetsici and corirster1aroy, hi case ofeerporaie and sisiatt ind tiaeeltutir eaterprises 

lairancitig, li-ed assets are generally taken as security In, lotig hellcaT loans laid c'urrenr assert fin rsvtarkiirg capital tinttttce ustittlly laacked by rrsraitgttge or liy1aotltecarisrrr. [tar 

project finance, security aftlae assert ofrlse barrosver and assigurneisr of lire sisder-lying project contracts is gerreratty obtained. Additional security such as pledge ofsir ares, 

rasit collateral, 'l'DRa, SSC/DSC5, eirarge on rca ci vaht ci isi ay also be rakeis. Moreover. in order 10 Cover mile entire exposure Persotitit Cuaraisleer of Directors / Boorosvers 

are also 'deram"I by (lie Bank. 

Tue decision otr rise type and quraislsitss ofcollateral for each trattaaclion is taken by the credit approv irag authority as per (lie approved credit approval aurhorizattoti. For 

facilities provided as per approved pi-odercl policies, collateral is laken in line with the policy, 

35.1.3.4 	Types at eligible financial coliatertil 

For dcclit risk istiir'gal ion purposes, rise branches eoireider all typee of tiutsiscia t eo tt alerts Is t irat are eligible rsisler SUP Basel II accord. 'Ibis irrc lit des Cash / TURn, Gold, 

sedimntiies issrisd by Coveortnenr of Pakislan srtels as T'Bi lit sad Pips, National Sovils gs Certificates, cet'uai ts debar secrini lies raise1 by a recognized credit rat irrg agency, in slits1 

Iris! mInts wisere ciatly Net Aaset Vahtte (IsIAV) is available it, pnilitic sits tunis tins1 uniarairtees lions ecrtain specified entities. [it gerieial, for Capital ealcarlaimtttr purposes, in ttire 

svills lire Still Base! II meqati meirreirt s, the Bank me rogisices tttil' eligible col Iai era is as sian hired in tire SB P Basal It accord. 

35.1.3.5 	Credit cuneentraiisr n risk 

('mcciii coircerslnarion nick arises rssaitsiy elsie to coirceistration of expoarmres utrder variotts categories viz. iudusiry, geography, and si rsgte/grortp horrosver. \Vilbrits emeshi portfolio 

- 	 ass prudcntistl rascssttre aimed at lantor risk ntaissgcissetmt and aroiciasace ofeoucettu-atissst of risks. line SDI' ties pmesciitaetl regutaioty httsrts Ott taairkt' trraxtniiirri expositre to 

allele tao 'rower and grotrp borrosvers. 



35.2 	Segmental information 

35.2.1 	Segments by class of business 2015 
Conlingencies and 

Advances Deposits Commitments 

(Rupees Percent (Rupees Percent (Rupees 	 Percent 

in 000) in '000) its '000) 

Mining and Quarrying - 0.0% 300,532 1.2% 362,928 0.3% 

Textile 300,000 4.3% 2,354 0.0% - 0.11% 

Electronics and electrical appliances 1.121,065 16.0% 4,963,846 18.5% 198,316 0.2% 

Conttnaction - 0.0% 1,733,169 6.4% 611,523 0.6% 

Communication - 0.0% - 00Z, - 0.0% 

Power (electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary 2,146,600 30.7% 15,337,450 56,9'S', 1,045,181 0.9% 

Wholesale and Retail Trade . 0.0% 155,842 0.6% 1888,519 1.7% 

Exports/Imports - 0.0% 118 0.0°/s - 0.0% 

Transport, Storage and Communication - 0.0% 3,030,788 11.2% 0.0% 

Financial - 0.0% 29,444 0.1% 102,219,458 92.8% 

Chemical and Pharmaceuticals 1,180,001 16.9% '157 0.0% - 0.0% 

Individuals 17,851 0.3% 333,415 1.2/s - 0.0% 

Others 2,233,889 31.8% 1,061,567 3.9% 3,864,779 3.5% 

6,999,406 100% 26,948,982 100% 110 190 7114 100% 

'Contingencies and 

Advances Deposits Commitments 
(Rupccs Percent (Rupees Percent (Rupees 	 Percent 

in '000) in '000) in '000) 

Mining and Quarrying - 0.0% 66,095 0.7% 17.585 0,0% 

Textile - 0,0% 633 0,0% - 0.0% 

Electronics and electrical appliances 1,364,653 22.4% 1,662 0.0% 10,153,633 15.7% 

Construction - 0.0% 1,902,335 20.1% 22.310.351 34,4% 

Con,municatinn - 0.0% 3,505,452 36.9% 12,223,549 18.9% 

Power (electricity), Gas, Water, Sanitary 2,799,000 46.0% 3,095,230 32.6% 1832,253 18% 

Wholesale and Retail Trade 804,775 112% 297,806 3.1% 19,191,334 28.5% 

Exports/Imports - 0.0% - 0.0% - 0.0% 

Transport. Storage and Communication - 0.0% 10,008 0.1% 36,177 0,1% 

Financial - 0.0% 56,977 0.6% - 0.0% 

Chemical and Pharmaceuticals 920,000 15,1% - 0,0% - 0,0% 

Individuals 18,067 0.3% 211,847 2.2% - 0.0% 

Others 180,555 3.0% 352,6111 3,711., - 0.0% 

4,Q 7,0 _ 00% 9 5_00a26 tost% 64,764.881 00% 

35.2,2 	Segment by sector 2015 
*Contingencies and 

Advances Deposits Commitments 

(Rupees Percent (Rupees Percent (Rupees 	 Percent 

its 	000) in '000) WOOD) 

Public/ Government . 0% - 0% - 0% 

Private 6,999,406 100% 26,948,982 100% 1111,190,704 100% 

P1j°j___j°7' IOU'S', 110,190,7114 100% 

-Contingencies and 

Advances 	 Deposits 	 Comnsnitmcnts 

(Rupees 	 Percent 	 (Rupees 	 Percent 	 (Rupees 	 Percent 

in '000) 	 in '000) 	 to '000) 

Public/ Government 	 1.799,000 	 30% 	 - 	 0% 	 - 	 tI'S', 
Private 	 4,288,050 	 70% 	9,500,726 	 100% 	64,764,881 	 00% 

	

6,097,050 	 ltl0% 	9,500,726 	 00% _64764 	 100% 

35.2.3 GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT ANALYSIS 

Pakistan 

Profit before 	Total assets 	Net assets 	*Contingencies 

	

taxation 	employed 	employed 	 and 

commitments 

	

- 	 - (Rmrpcea in '000) 

2,820,861 	1411,254,295 	6.398 974 	110.19111704 

2014 
Profit before 	Total assets 	Net assets 	'Contingencies 

	

tsx;ttitttt 	 s'ttttt ls'vtit 	sir, I 'vs's 

(ttttpces in '1)00) 

Pakistan 	 1,404,838 	75 950,387 	4,507,566 	64,764.881 

Contingent liabilities for time purpose of this note are pi inclined at cost and include transact ion and trade related coot ittgcnl liabilities. 



	

35.3 	Market risk 

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from movement in market variables including observable variables such as interest rates, 

exchange rates and equity indices, and others which may be only indirectly observable such as volatilities and correlations. The 

branches' policy is that all market risk taking activity is undertaken within approved market risk limits, and that the branches' 

standards/ guiding principles are upheld at all times. 

Market Risk Management is an independent control function with clear segregation of duty and reporting line with the 

business-line. Its main responsibility is to ensure that the risk-taking units manage the Bank's market risk exposure within a 
robust market risk framework and within the Bank's risk appetite. The Bank's standard systems are used to furnish senior 
trading and Market Risk staff with risk exposures. All trading activities and any business proposal that commit or may commit 
the Bank (legally or morally) to deliver risk sensitive products require approval by independent authorized risk professionals or 

committees, prior to commitment. 

35.3.1 Foreign exchange risk 

Foreign exchange risk arises from the fluctuation in the value of financial instruments consequent to the changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The Bank manages this risk by setting and monitoring dealer, currency and counter-party limits for on and 

off-balance sheet financial instruments. 

FX risk is mainly managed through matched positions. Unmatched positions are covered substantially through derivative 

instruments such as Forwards and Swaps. 

The currency risk is regulated and monitored against the regulatory/statutory limits enforced by the State Bank of Pakistan. The 
foreign exchange exposure limits in respective currencies are managed against the preset ibed limits. 

The analysis below represents the concentration of the Bank's foreign currency risk for on and off balance sheet financial 

instruments: 
2015 

Assets 	Liabilities 	Off-balance 	Net foreign 

sheet items 	currency 

exposure 

--------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)-- ---------------------- -------- 

Pakistan Rupee 	 134,799,892 	21,992,383 	106,407,176 	6,400,333 

United States Dollar 	 4,756,703 	70,071,765 	(65,487,924) 	172,862 

Great Britain Pound 	 16 	 - 	 (4) 	 20 

Japanese Yen 	 35 	 - 	 - 	 35 

Earn 	 21,193 	38,582,795 	(38,468,206) 	(93,344) 

Chinese Yuan 	 674,357 	3,208,378 	(2,451,025) 	(82,996) 

1-IKD 	 2,099 	 - 	 (17) 	 2,116 

Total foreign currency exposure 	 5,454,403 	111,862,938 	(106,407,176)  

Total currency exposure 	 140,254,295 	133,855,321 	 - 	 6,399,026 

2014 

Assets 	Liabilities 	Off-balance 	Net foreign 

sheet items 	currency 

exposure 

-------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000)----------------------------------- 

Pakistan Rupee 	 11,234,524 	10,354,196 	(44,545,669) 	(43,665,341) 

United States Dollar 	 47,254,866 	43,627,628 	11,127,305 	14,754,543 

Great Britain Pound 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 
Japanese Yen 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 
Earn 	 17,121,639 	17,121,639 	34,018,634 	34,018,634 

Chinese Yuan 	 339,358 	339,358 	(600,270) 	(600.270) 
Total foreign currency exposure 	 64,715,863 	61,088,625 	44,545,669 	48,172,907 
Total currency exposure 	 75,950,387 	71,442,821 	 - 	 4,507,566 

	

35.4 	Interest rate risk 

The interest rate risk arises from the fluctuation in the value of financial instruments consequent to changes in market interest 
rates. The branches are exposed to interest rate risk as a result of mismatches or gaps in the amounts of assets and liabilities and 
off-balance sheet instruments that mature or are re-priced in a given period. In order to ensure that this risk is managed within 
acceptable limits, branches' Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO) monitors various gap limits and re-pricing of 
the assets and liabilities on a regular basis. 



35.4.1 	Mismatch of interest rate sets the tinancia assets and IIrs,,ci, I Os bilities 

• 2015 

• Effective Expot 	toyield Interest Risk  

Yield I Over I Over 3 Over 6 Over I Over 2 Over 3 Over S 

Interest 
T 	I o a 

tIpto I to3 ts6 Months Io2 to3 loS IntO Above 

Non- interest 
bearing 

rate Month Months Months to I Year Yrars Years Years Years tO Years financial - 

On-balance sheet financia linstruments 
tastrun,ents 

Aos eta  __________________________________ 
treasurybanks - 5,413124 

_
('ashandbatancessv:th - - - - •-  - 5,413,124 

Balances svil other banks 0-1.4 246,427 

Lendings to flnancial institutions 1.3-1.3 669,547 D Invesostents- net 6.29-6.94 124,771,021 

Advances - net 2.82-10.13 6,999,406 

Other asatta - 125,044,601 - - - - - -  - 125,044,601 

Liabilities 

263,144,126 3,902,193 6,550,636 107,941,220 14,010,231 	 152 4,213 267,924 - 9,451 130,458,106 

BiBs p,bIe - fl 266,947 

Borrowings 0.25-6.5 100,081,926 

Deposits and other accc,it nIt 03-6.42 26,948,982 

Other liabilities - 6,008,320 

	

- El
- 	- 	- 	- 	- 	

-E

266,947 

	II  99,262,962 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 -

1,625,770 	1,340.314 	299,924 	 - 	 - 	 - 10,363,803 

	

 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	6,008,320 

133,306,175 	14,138,135 	 - 	100,888,732 1,340,314 	299,924 	 - 	 - 	 - 	16,639,070 

On-balance sheet tap 129,837,951 	(10,235,942) 	6,550,636 	7,052,488 12,669,917 	(299,772) 	4,213 	267,924 	 - 	 9,451 	113,819,036 

Off-balance sheet financial instruments 

Fonvsrd cxclsnnge cosstrsclt - purchase 217,070,802 	 33,508 	15,181,182 	157,987,080 43,869,032 

Forward cxclsatsge contracts - sale 220,615,085 	 33,239 	15,290,356 	I 	161,425,747 11 43,865.743 

Off-balance sheet gap (3,544,283) 	 269 	(109,174) 	(3,438,667) 3,289 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 

Total Yield / Interest Risk Sensitivity Gap (10,235,673) 	6,441,462 	3,613,821 12,673,206 	(299,772) 	4,213 	267,924 	 - 	 99 451 

Cumulative Yield 'Interest Risk Sensitivity gap (10,235,673) 	(3,794,211) 	(180,390) 12,492,816 	12,193,044 	12,197,257 	12,465,181 	11,465,181 	12,474,632 

2014 

7 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	4329697

2 	 294763 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 379 A 0 	 484170 	645560 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 -

409 

	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 751,199 

75,667,422 	2.153,902 	24.522,283 	41,46L387 	2.249.955 	 105 	 1,0)9 	3,582 	ts,flt 	 5,/ui 	i,uot,z/ 

Non-interest 

On-balance sheet financial inatnaments 	 $'s 	

'ntmsmentt 

Aaseta __

Cash and balanees with treasury banks 

Balanceswtsh othe, ha:tks 

Lendings to financial tnntitutiott

Invcaostcnta - net 

Advances-tiet

Other assets 

Exposed to yield Interest Risk 

Yield / 	Total 

Effective 	

LOver I 

	 Over3 	 0ver6 	 Over' 	 Over2 	Overs 	Overs 

It 	
Months 

Uptol 	 te3 	 to6 

	

Months 	1 	to2 	 to3 	 to r5 	 plO 	 Above 

Month 	 hto,sus 	Months 	 to I Year 	Years 	 Years 	I 	Years 	 Years 	 10 V cat-s 	- 
-- 	 bearing financial 

0-1.3

4.0-4.1 

9.39-10.02 

2.73-12.17 

4,667 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 4,667 

	

56.592,615 	3,322,305 	20.096,620 	33,173,690 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 

	

9,500,726 	4,027,651 	2,908.575 	165,720 	 3,720 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	2,395,060 

	

4.957,397 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 

	

008-9.5

0-9.70

71.055,405 	7349956 	23005195 	33,339,410 	 3,720 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 	7,357,124 

	

4,612,017 	(5,196,054) 	1,517,088 	8,121,977 	2,246,235 	 lOS 	 1,059 	3,582 	185,151 	 8,723 	(2,275,849) 

liabilities 

Bills pavabic

Borrosvings

Deposits and other secounts 

Other Iisbi I ties 

On-balancesheet gap 
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Effective 
I 	Yield Total 

Overt 
1 

U 	Over3 	II Over6 II 	Overt 1 	Over2 0ver3 	II Overs II 	 ii 1 
interesirate Upta I bo3 to6 Months to2 II 	 I 

to3 tos II lob 
II 	 II Above 

Non-interest 

I Month 	UI -Months 	II Months 	
p 

tot Year II 	Years t 	Yearn 	I Yearn 
V 
I 	Ycnrn II 	tUYears 

beano gfinanci al  

Off-balance shoot financial instruments Vs 
trurnen tn 

j 

Forward exchange contracts - porchane I'iib. 138,785 J P 	13,182,649 II 	5] 024 	[o,i'io 	I 19,97 	833 
IJ Forward exchange contracts - sale 

I 	
153,051,919  II 	3,177723 I 	5t,855,I 	68,056,146 19,962.539 	, 	 - 	Ii 	- 	I IL 

Off-balance sheet gap (2.913,134) 	 4,926 	(831318) 	(2,096,036) 9.294 	 - 	 - - 	 - 	 - - 

Total Yield !tatoront Rink Sensitivity Gap (5,191,128) 	685,770 	6,025,941 2,255.529 	 105 	 1,059 3,582 	185,151 	 8,723 

Cumulative Yield / Interest Risk S enst'niviaygap _.(U 	1,128) 	(4,505,358) 	1,520,583 3,776,112 	3,776.217 	3,777,276 3,780.858 	3,966,009 	3.974.732 

35.4.2 	Reconciliation ofAtseta and Liabilities exposed to yield 	interest rate rink with Total Assets and Liabilities zois 2014 

(Rupees '000) 

Total finatsoini assets as per note 354.1 263,844,126 75,667,422 
Add: Non financial assess 

Operating fixed assess 662,763 183,341 
Defes'red lax aaseln 41,078 - 
Other Assess (123,593.672) 99,624 

Total assess as per statement of financial position 140,254,295 75,950,387 

Total liabilities as per note 35.4.1 833,306.175 71,055,405 

Add: Non financial liabilities 

Deferred tax liabilities - 21,132 
Other liabilities 549.146 366,284 

Total liabilities as per statement offinaiseial position 133,855321 71.442,821 



	

133,855,321 	28,787,948 	815,742 	100,924,381 	1,397,572 	379,540 	51,175 	42,854 	1,456,109 

Net assets 	 6.398,974 	806 655 	5.770,560 	7,026,664 	12,614.944 	JY729871 _J9,907) 	852,894 	1 43 3 79,392 

Head Office-capital account 	 3,780,941 
Unremitted profit / Accumulated (losses) 	 2,620,351 
Deficit on revaluation of investments - net of tax 

6.398,974 

140,254,295 	6,981,293 	6,586,302 	107,951,045 	14,012,516 	6,553 	11,268 	895,748 	19,178 	3,790,392 

Liabilities 

Bills payable 
Borrowings 
Deposits and other accounts 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Other liabilities  

266,947 266,947 - - - - - - 
100,081,926 818,964 
26,948,982 23,682,974 LE 6,557,466  4,019,063 815,742 35,649 57,258 79616 hP5 42854  

F 	 F 

35.5 	Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the branches will be unable to meet their net funding requirements. Liquidity risk can be caused by market destruction of credit downgrades, which may cause certain sources 
offundingto become unavailable. To guard against this risk the branches' assets are managed with liquidity in mind, maintaining a healthy balance of cash, cash equivalents and readily marketable securities. 
The maturity profile is monitored to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained. 

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the branches assets and liabilities. The contractual maturities of assets and liabilities at the year end have been determined on the basis of the remaining 
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date and do not take account of the effective maturities as indicated by the branches deposit retention history and the availability of liquid funds. 
Assets and liabilities not having a contractual maturity are assumed to mature on the expected date on which the assets /liabilities will be realized / settled. 

35.5.1 	Maturities of assets and liabilities - based on contractual maturity of the branches 
0lS 

Total Up to I monthi Over I to 3 rover  3 to 6 Over 6 Months J Over I to 2 Over 2 to Over 3 to Over 5 to 10 Above 10 
Months Months to I YearJ Years J L3 \'ears Years Years Years 

Assets -------------------------------------------- 

Cash and balances with treasury banks 

Balances with other banks 
Lendings to financial institutions 
Investments - net 
Advances 
Operating Fixed assets 
Deferred tax asset 
Other assets 

5,413,124 1,632,183 - - - - - - - 3,7d0,941 
246,427 246,427 - - - - - - - - 
669,547 669,547 - - - - - - - - 

124,771,022 - 5,899,474 105,591,317 13,280,231 - - - - - 
6,999,406 2,986,600 651,163 2,349,903 730,000 152 4,213 267,924 - 9,451 

662,763 - - 20 2,285 6,401 7,055 627,824 19,178 - 
41,078 41,078 - - - - - - - - 

1,450,928 1,405,458 35,665 9,805 - - - - - - 



2014  

Assets 	 ------------------------------------------------------------------ ----------------- (Rupees in'OOO) 

___ __________ 
Total Up to I month Over Ito 3 Over 3 to 6 Over 6 Months Over Ito 2 Over 2 to 3 Over 3 to 5 Over 5 to I0 Above 10 - 

- Months Months to I Year Years Years Years Years Years  

Cash and balances with treasury banks 
Balances with other banks 

Lendings to financial institutions 
Investments - net 
Advances 

Operating fixed assets 
Other assets 

4,329,697 702,458 - - - - - - - 3,627,239 
295,142 295,142 - - - - - - - - 

1,129,730 484,170 645,560 - - - - - - - 
63,074,604 - 22,146,508 40,928,096 - - - - - - 
6,087,050 1,374,969 1,730,215 533,291 2,249,955 105 1,059 3,582 185,151 8,723 

183,341 - - - 968 8,305 161,612 12,456 - - 
850,823 772,491 59,599 - 18,733 - - - - - 

	

75,950,387 	3,629,230 	24,581,882 	41,461,387 	2,269,656 	 8,410 	162,671 	16,038 	185,151 	3,635,962 

Liabilities 

Bills payable 
Borrowings 

Deposits and other accounts 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Other liabilities 

	

71,442,821 	13,333,475 	23,078,722 	33,373,341 	81,607 	70,860 	56,785 	48,877 	1,399,154 

Net assets 	 4.507,566 	(9,704,245) 	1.503.160 	8,088.046 	2,188,049 	(62,450) 	105,886 	(32,839) 	(1,214,003) 	3,635,962 

Head Office-capital account 	 3,627,239 
Unreniitted profit I Accumulated (losses) 	 844,926 

- Surplus on revaluation of investments net of tax 	 35,401 
4.507.566 

4,667 4,667 - - - - - - - - 
56,592,615 3,322,305 20,096,620  
9,500,726 6,422,711  

21,132 - 
5,323,681 3,583,792 73,527 33,931 56,755 70,860 56,785 48,877 1,399.154 - 



35.6 	Operational risk 

The branches operational risk is related to possible losses which may be incurred as a result of 
failures occurring in the branches' day to day operations, such as breakdown in electronic and 

telecommunication, routines or other systems. Additional factors being insufficient levels of 

professional skills or human errors. In order to keep the branches' operational risks to a minimum 
level, various suites of risk tools are used to manage operational risk using a common categorization 

of risk. 

Branches' approach to operational risk is not designed to eliminate risk, rather, to contain it within 
the acceptable levels, as determined by senior management, and to ensure that the branches have 

used sufficient information to make informed decisions about additional controls, adjustments to 

controls, or other risk responses. 

35.6.1 Operational risk disclosures - Easel II Specific 

The branches use Basic Indicator Approach to Calculate capital charge for operational risk as per 
Basel II regulatory framework. This approach is considered to be most suitable in view of the 

business model of the branches. 

36 	DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE 

The financial statements were authorized for issue on 	by the Chief Executive 

Officer and I-lead of Finance of the branches. 

37 GENERAL 

Comparative information has been re-classified, re-arranged or additionally incorporated in these 
financial statements, wherever necessary to facilitate comparison. 

Ye Nine 

Head of Finance 
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STATEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

It is the responsibility of the management of ICBC Pakistan Operations to establish, 
improve and effectively implement internal controls and to evaluate the effectiveness 
of the internal controls of the Branch.The objective for the internal control system of 
the Bank is to reasonably assure that the Bank's operations and management are in 
compliance with relevant laws, safety of Bank assets, as well as the timeliness, 
authenticity and completeness of its business record, financial information and other 
management information, to enhance operation efficiency and results, and to facilitate 
the Bank in achieving its development strategy and operating target. 

The Bank has adopted internationally accepted COSO Internal Control - Integrated 
Framework covering all sets of Internal Controls and ensuring compliance with SBP 
Guidelines.SBP's Guidelines on ICFR have been implemented and the same is 
updated as and when required and subject to annual review by External Auditors. 

The Internal Audit Department of the Bank reviews the adequacy and effectivenessof 
bank wide internal controls and believed that during the reporting period, internal 
control system of the Bank was sound and effectively implemented. Keeping in view 
the risk exposure, internal controls are regularly reviewed and reported on their 
soundness. 

For the year under review, it has been endeavored to follow the Guidelines on Internal 
Controls and that it is an ongoing process for the identification, evaluation and 
management of significant risks faced by the bank. The system is designed to manage, 
rather than eliminate the risk of failure in order to achieve the business objectives, and 
can only provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement or loss. 

Muhammad Imran Khalid 
Head of Compliance 

Zhou Kun 
Head of Internal Audit 

16th Floor, Ocean Tower, G-3, Block-9, Scheme #5, Main Clifton Road, Karachi, Pakistan. 
Tel: 021-3520-8988 / 3520-8900 Fax: 021-3520-8930 Website: www.icbc.com.pk  

ICBC IS INCORPORATED IN THE PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA, THE LIABILITY OF MEMBERS BEING LIMITED. 
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Risk Management Framework 

ICBC Pakistan Operations ("Bank") has risk management guidelines to manage 
Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk. 

ICBC Head Office has setup parameters under which the Bank is responsible for 
formulating high-level policies which includes independent review of the large credit 
exposure and the portfolio management of risk concentration. It also reviews the 
efficiency of credit approval process, a key element of which is the Bank's universal 
facility grading system. ICBC has dedicated standards, policies and procedures in 
place to control and monitor all such risks. ICBC has a well-established credit risk 
management process, which involves control and monitoring of exposure. 

The management of market risk is controlled through risk limits. The Bank launched 
Global Market Risk Management system (GMRM) to establish an integrated and 
unified data and risk measurement management platform. The Bank also implemented 
the measurement and monitoring of interest and exchange rate risk. 

In order to guarantee the bank liquidity, ICBC has adopted the following measures: 
a. Strengthen the forecast of the assets and liabilities of the Bank and properly 

arrange adequate capital 
b. Enhance communication with other financial institutions to further strengthen 

our access to liquidity 
c. Flexible pricing based on marketing research to attract more customer deposit 

ICBC established policies and manuals to ensure that the control environment is 
formal and documented. Each policy and manual has its owner and is approved and 
documented. ICBC promotes compliance culture, advises management and line staff 
on regulations, assists in designing internal controls, monitors compliances with laws 
and regulations, communicates with the regulator and consultants, and provides 
training to staff; all of which helps raise staff awareness and enhance compliance 
controls. 

He Shen u 	 Zhang Ro~Ixang 
Chief Executi e Officer 	 Head of Risk 

16th Floor, Ocean Tower, G-3, Block-9, Scheme #5, Main Clifton Road, Karachi, Pakistan. 
Tel: 021-3520-8988 / 3520-8900 Fax: 021-3520-8930 Website: www.icbc.com.pk  

lcBc IS INCORPORATED IN THE PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA, THE LIABILITY OF MEMBERS BEING LIMITED. 


